Code of Alabama 1975 – TITLE 24 HOUSING

Note: This document was copied from:

http://www.legislature.state.al.us/CodeofAlabama/1975/coatoc.htm

Attempt was made to insure the accuracy, however, before using for any legal reason please refer to the above link to insure correctness.

Also, this document is an expanded version of what was included in the printed "AAHRA Directory." Included is ALL of Title 24 which includes more than "Municipal Housing Authorities."

The document is, for your ease of use, hyperlink indexed and searchable.

Table of Contents

Contents

rticle 1 General Provisions	1
Section 24-1-1	1
Payments to cities, counties, etc., for maintenance of low rent housing projects, etc	1
Section 24-1-2	1
Housing research and studies.	1
Section 24-1-3	1
Rural housing projects.	1
Section 24-1-4	2
Agreements of municipal, county or regional housing authorities to secure federal contributions	2
Section 24-1-5	2
Powers conferred by Sections 24-1-1 through 24-1-4 supplemental	2
Section 24-1-6	2
Establishment of rentals and tenant selection in low rent housing projects.	2
Section 24-1-7	4

Creation, etc., of certain housing authorities validated	4
Section 24-1-8	4
Certain agreements and obligations of housing authorities validated	4
Section 24-1-9	5
Issuance, etc., of notes and bonds by housing authorities validated	5
Section 24-1-10	5
Establishing eligibility for public housing, rent subsidies, etc., by fraudulent means; misdem penalty; notice requirement.	
Article 2 Municipal Housing Authorities	7
Section 24-1-20	7
Short title.	7
Section 24-1-21	7
Legislative findings and declaration of necessity	7
Section 24-1-22	7
Definitions	7
Section 24-1-23	9
Procedure for incorporation of authority; boundaries of authority; denial of petition for incorporation of petition after denial	•
Section 24-1-24	11
Composition of authority; qualifications, appointment, term of office and compensation of commissioners; vacancies in office; quorum; officers and employees of authority; delegatio powers and duties by authority	n of
Section 24-1-26	11
Conflicts of interest of commissioners or employees	11
Section 24-1-27	12
Powers and duties of authority generally	12
Section 24-1-28	14
Acquisition of property by eminent domain	15
Section 24-1-29	15
Acquisition, etc., of property for government housing projects.	15
Section 24-1-30	15
Authority housing projects subject to local zoning, building, etc., laws	15
Section 24-1-31	15

Issuance of bonds by authority; types of and security for bonds generally; liability on bonds	15
Section 24-1-32	16
Form, denominations, terms, etc., of bonds; sale of bonds; issuance of interim certificates, etc.	16
Section 24-1-33	17
Powers of authority to secure payment of bonds, etc.	17
Section 24-1-34	19
Contracts, etc., with federal government for construction, etc., of housing projects	19
Section 24-1-35	19
Mortgages of authority property in connection with government financed projects	19
Section 24-1-36	20
Investment by state, fiduciaries, banks, etc., in bonds, etc., issued by authorities	20
Section 24-1-37	20
Remedies of obligee of authority generally	21
Section 24-1-38	21
Remedies conferrable upon obligees of authority by trust indenture, mortgage, etc	21
Section 24-1-39	21
Remedies cumulative	21
Section 24-1-40	21
Exemption of authority property from mortgage foreclosures, levy and execution and judgme	nt liens.
	22
Section 24-1-41	22
Title acquired by purchasers at sale of authority property subject to agreements with governments	nent 22
Section 24-1-42	22
Security for funds deposited by authorities in banks and trust companies.	22
Section 24-1-43	22
Annual report and recommendations of authority.	22
Section 24-1-44	23
Enforcement of article and contracts of authority.	23
Section 24-1-45	23
Conflicting provisions	23
Article 3 County Housing Authorities	24
Section 24-1-60	24

Legislative findings and declaration of necessity	24
Section 24-1-61	24
Definitions	24
Section 24-1-62	26
Procedure for incorporation of authority; boundaries of authority; denial of petition for incorporesubmission of petition after denial	
Section 24-1-63	27
Composition of authority; qualifications, appointment, term of office and compensation of hous commissioners; officers and employees of authority; delegation of powers and duties by author	_
Section 24-1-64	28
Removal of commissioners.	28
Section 24-1-66	28
Powers and duties of authority generally	29
Section 24-1-67	31
Acquisition of property by eminent domain	31
Section 24-1-68	31
Acquisition, etc., of property for government housing projects.	31
Section 24-1-69	32
Authority housing projects subject to local zoning, building, etc., laws	32
Section 24-1-70	32
Issuance of bonds by authority; types of and security for bonds generally; liability on bonds	32
Section 24-1-71	32
Form, denominations, terms, etc., of bonds; sale of bonds; issuance of interim certificates, etc	33
Section 24-1-72	33
Powers of authority to secure payment of bonds, etc.	33
Section 24-1-73	36
Contracts, etc., with federal government for construction, etc., of housing projects	36
Section 24-1-74	36
Mortgages of authority property in connection with government financed projects	36
Section 24-1-75	37
Remedies of obligee of authority generally	37
Section 24-1-76	37

Remedies conferrable upon obligees of authority by trust indenture, mortgage, etc	37
Section 24-1-77	37
Remedies cumulative	37
Section 24-1-78	38
Exemption of authority property from mortgage foreclosures, levy and execution and	l judgment liens.
	38
Section 24-1-79	38
Title acquired by purchasers at sale of authority property subject to agreements with	government38
Section 24-1-80	38
Security for funds deposited by authorities in banks and trust companies	38
Section 24-1-81	38
Low income housing in rural areas.	38
Section 24-1-82	39
Annual report and recommendations of authority.	39
Section 24-1-83	39
Enforcement of article and contracts of authority; competitive bidding required on co	
	39
Article 4 Regional and Consolidated Housing Authorities.	
Section 24-1-100	40
Short title	40
Section 24-1-101	40
Definitions	40
Section 24-1-102	40
Procedure for incorporation.	40
Section 24-1-103	41
Area of operation	41
Section 24-1-104	41
Procedure for increase of area of operation.	41
Section 24-1-105	42
Procedure for decrease of area of operation.	42
Section 24-1-106	43

Public hearings and application to Secretary of State required for incorporation or change i operation	
Section 24-1-107	43
Housing commissioners - Appointment, term of office and removal; filling of vacancies; cer powers and duties generally; quorum; chairman and other officers	
Section 24-1-108	44
Housing commissioners - Meetings; residence	45
Section 24-1-109	45
Rights, powers, etc., of authority and commissioners generally	45
Section 24-1-110	45
Consolidated housing authorities	45
Section 24-1-111	46
Operation of housing authorities in municipality outside area of operation	46
Section 24-1-112	46
Procedure for adoption of resolution authorizing operation of housing authority in municip	ality 46
Section 24-1-113	47
Agreements to secure federal contributions and loans	47
Section 24-1-114	47
Bonds and other obligations of authorities legal investments	47
Section 24-1-115	47
Assistance and cooperation by municipalities, counties, etc	47
Section 24-1-116	48
Cooperation of authorities	48
Section 24-1-117	48
Powers conferred by article supplemental	48
Article 5 Cooperation of Cities, Counties, etc., With Housing Authorities	49
Section 24-1-130	49
Legislative findings and declaration of necessity	49
Section 24-1-131	49
Definitions	49
Section 24-1-132	49
Powers of municipalities counties public hodies etc. to aid housing authorities	10

Sectio	n 24-1-133	50
Resolu	tion authorizing exercise of powers granted.	50
Sectio	n 24-1-134	51
City or	town may lend or donate money to housing authority; reimbursement	51

Code of Alabama 1975 – TITLE 24 HOUSING

Article 1 General Provisions.

Section 24-1-1

Payments to cities, counties, etc., for maintenance of low rent housing projects, etc.

Any housing authority created by or pursuant to this title may agree to make such payments to the city or county, the state or any political subdivision thereof, which payments such bodies are hereby authorized to accept, as such authority finds consistent with the maintenance of the low rent character of housing projects or the achievement of the purposes of this title.

Section 24-1-2

Housing research and studies.

In addition to all its other powers, any housing authority created by or pursuant to this title may, within its area of operation, undertake and carry out studies and analyses of the housing needs, and of the meeting of such needs, including data with respect to population and family groups and the distribution thereof according to income groups, the amount and quality of available housing and its distribution according to rentals and sales prices, employment, wages and other factors affecting the local housing needs and the meeting thereof, and make the results of such studies and analyses available to the public and the building, housing and supply industries. Any such housing authority may also engage in research and disseminate information on the subject of housing.

Section 24-1-3

Rural housing projects.

(a) Until a purchaser makes full payment for a dwelling which is constructed by a county or regional housing authority in a rural area, such dwellings shall continue to be the property of such authority, regardless of the title to the land on which it is constructed, and such dwelling shall be exempt from taxation in the same manner as other property of such authority. Any document making land available for use by such authority shall be admitted to record, and accordingly constitute notice, in the same manner as a deed or other instrument relating to real estate.

- (b) When a county or regional housing authority provides a dwelling in a rural area under this title, the owner of the land living in the dwelling under a lease or purchase agreement shall be entitled to receive the same homestead exemption as if he had title to the dwelling.
- (c) No dwelling shall be provided on a farm by a county or regional housing authority unless it has determined that, by reason of the character of the farm with respect to which the dwelling is to be constructed and the manner of its operation, the farmer is likely successfully to carry out the undertakings required of him under his purchase agreement or lease.

Section 24-1-4

Agreements of municipal, county or regional housing authorities to secure federal contributions.

In addition to the powers conferred upon a housing authority created for a city or county or a regional housing authority by other provisions of law, such authority, in any contract for annual contributions with the federal government, may obligate itself, which obligation shall be specifically enforceable and shall not constitute a mortgage, notwithstanding any other laws, to convey to the federal government the project to which such contract relates, upon the occurrence of a substantial default with respect to the covenants or conditions to which such authority is subject. Such contract may further provide that in case of such conveyance, the federal government may complete, operate, manage, lease, convey or otherwise deal with the project in accordance with the terms of such contract. Any such contract shall require that, as soon as practicable after the federal government is satisfied that all defaults by reason of which it shall have acquired the project have been cured and that the project will thereafter be operated in accordance with the terms of the contract, the federal government shall reconvey to such authority the project as then constituted.

Section 24-1-5

Powers conferred by Sections 24-1-1 through 24-1-4 supplemental.

The powers conferred by Sections 24-1-1 through 24-1-4 shall be in addition and supplemental to the powers conferred by any other law, and nothing contained therein shall be construed as limiting any other powers of a housing authority.

Section 24-1-6

Establishment of rentals and tenant selection in low rent housing projects.

(a) It is declared to be the policy of this state that each housing authority shall manage and operate its low rent housing projects in an efficient manner so as to enable it to fix the rentals for dwelling accommodations at the lowest possible rates consistent with its providing decent, safe and sanitary dwelling accommodations for persons of low income, and that no housing authority shall construct or operate any such project for profit, or as a source of revenue of the city or town. To this end a housing authority shall fix the rentals for such dwellings in its low rent

housing projects at no higher rates than it shall find to be necessary in order to produce revenues which, together with all other available moneys, revenues, income and receipts of such authority from whatever sources derived, including federal financial assistance necessary to maintain the low rent character of the projects, will be sufficient:

- (1) To pay, as the same become due, the principal and interest on the bonds or other obligations of such authority;
- (2) To meet the cost of, and to provide for, maintaining and operating the projects, including the cost of any insurance, and the administrative expenses of such authority;
- (3) To meet the cost of discharging all lawful obligations assumed by or imposed upon the authority or its property; and
- (4) To create, during not less than the six years immediately succeeding its issuance of any bonds or other obligations, a reserve sufficient to meet the largest principal and interest payments which will be due on such bonds or other obligations in any one year thereafter and to maintain such reserve.
- (b) Rentals or payments for such dwellings shall be established and the low rent housing projects administered, insofar as possible, so as to assure that any federal financial assistance required shall be strictly limited to amounts and periods necessary to maintain the low rent character of the projects.
- (c) In the operation or management of such low rent housing projects, a housing authority shall at all times observe the following duties with respect to rentals and tenant selection:
- (1) It may rent or lease the dwelling accommodations therein only to persons who lack the amount of income which is necessary, as determined by the housing authority undertaking the housing project, to enable them, without financial assistance, to live in decent, safe and sanitary dwellings, without overcrowding;
- (2) It may rent or lease the dwelling accommodations only at rentals within the financial reach of such persons;
- (3) It may rent or lease to a tenant dwelling accommodations consisting of the number of rooms, but no greater number, which it deems necessary to provide safe and sanitary accommodations to the proposed occupants thereof, without overcrowding; and
- (4) It shall not accept any person as a tenant in any such low rent housing project if the person or persons who would occupy the dwelling accommodations have, at the time of admission, an aggregate annual net income, less an exemption of \$100.00 for each minor member of the family other than the head of the family and his spouse, in excess of five times the annual rental of the quarters to be furnished such person or persons.

In computing the rental for this purpose of selecting tenants, there shall be included in the rental the average annual cost, as determined by the housing authority, to occupants of heat, water, electricity, gas, a cooking range and other necessary services or facilities, whether or not the charge for such services and facilities is in fact included in the rental; provided, that an authority may agree to conditions as to tenant eligibility or preference required by the federal government pursuant to federal law in any contract for financial assistance with the authority.

(d) Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as limiting the power of an authority to vest in an obligee the right, in the event of a default by the housing authority, to take possession of a housing project or cause the appointment of a receiver thereof, free from all the restrictions imposed by this section with respect to rental rates and tenant selection.

Section 24-1-7

Creation, etc., of certain housing authorities validated.

- (a) The creation, establishment and organization of housing authorities that have issued bonds under the provisions of this title, together with all proceedings, acts and things undertaken or done with reference thereto, prior to July 7, 1943, are hereby validated and declared legal in all respects.
- (b) The creation and establishment of housing authorities pursuant to, or purporting to be pursuant to, the provisions of this title and laws amendatory thereto, together with all proceedings, acts and things undertaken, performed or done with reference thereto (including the appointment of commissioners, officers and employees), prior to September 9, 1955, are hereby validated, ratified, confirmed, approved and declared legal in all respects, notwithstanding any want of statutory authority or defect or irregularity in such acts or proceedings. Said housing authorities are hereby declared to have been and to be legally constituted and to be bodies corporate and politic with all the powers, rights and duties set forth in the Housing Authorities Law.

Section 24-1-8

Certain agreements and obligations of housing authorities validated.

(a) All agreements and undertakings of housing authorities created or established under this title prior to July 7, 1943, entered into relating to financing, or aiding in the development or operation of any housing projects, including (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) loan and annual contributions, contracts, agency contracts, leases, agreements with municipalities or other public bodies (including those which are pledged or authorized to be pledged for the protection of the holders of any notes or bonds issued by such housing authorities or which are otherwise made a part of the contract with such holders of notes or bonds) relating to cooperation in aid of housing projects, payments to public bodies in the state, furnishing of municipal services and facilities and the elimination of unsafe and unsanitary dwellings, and contracts for the construction of housing projects, together with all proceedings, acts and things heretofore

undertaken or done with reference thereto prior to July 7, 1943, are hereby validated and declared legal in all respects.

(b) All contracts, agreements, obligations and undertakings of housing authorities entered into relating to financing or aiding in the planning, surveying, development, construction, maintenance or operation of any housing or redevelopment project or projects or to obtaining aid therefor from the federal government, including (without limiting the generality of the foregoing) loan and annual contributions, contracts and leases with the federal government, agreements with municipalities or other public bodies (including agreements which are pledged or authorized to be pledged for the protection of the holders of any notes or bonds issued by housing authorities or which are otherwise made a part of the contracts with such holders of notes or bonds) relating to cooperation, contributions, grants or other local participation in aid of housing or redevelopment projects, payments (if any) in lieu of taxes, furnishing of municipal services and facilities, the elimination of unsafe and unsanitary dwellings and contracts for the construction or operation of housing projects, together with all proceedings, acts and things undertaken, performed or done with reference thereto, prior to September 9, 1955, are hereby validated, ratified, confirmed, approved and declared legal in all respects, notwithstanding any defect or irregularity therein or any want of statutory authority.

Section 24-1-9

Issuance, etc., of notes and bonds by housing authorities validated.

- (a) All proceedings, acts and things undertaken or done prior to July 7, 1943, in or for the authorization, issuance, execution and delivery of notes and bonds by housing authorities for the purpose of financing or aiding in the development or construction of a housing project or projects, and all notes and bonds issued by housing authorities prior to July 7, 1943, are hereby validated and declared legal in all respects.
- (b) All proceedings, acts and things undertaken, performed or done prior to September 9, 1955, in or for the authorization, issuance, sale, execution and delivery of notes and bonds by housing authorities for the purpose of financing or aiding in the undertaking of a housing or redevelopment project or projects, and all notes and bonds issued by housing authorities prior to September 9, 1955, are hereby validated, ratified, confirmed, approved and declared legal in all respects, notwithstanding any defect or irregularity therein or any want of statutory authority.

Section 24-1-10

Establishing eligibility for public housing, rent subsidies, etc., by fraudulent means; misdemeanor; penalty; notice requirement.

(a) "Public housing" as used in this section shall mean housing which is constructed, operated or maintained by the state, a county, a municipal corporation, a housing authority or by any other political subdivision or public corporation of the state or its subdivisions.

- (b) Any person who obtains or attempts to obtain, or who establishes or attempts to establish, eligibility for and any person who knowingly or intentionally aids or abets such person in obtaining or attempting to obtain, or in establishing or attempting to establish eligibility for, any public housing, or a reduction in public housing rental charges, or any rent subsidy, to which such person would not otherwise be entitled, by means of a false statement, failure to disclose information, impersonation or other fraudulent scheme or device shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine of not less than \$300.00 nor more than \$500.00 or be punished at hard labor for the county not to exceed 60 days, or may be both fined and imprisoned, at the discretion of the court.
- (c) Notice of this section shall be printed on the application form for public housing and shall be displayed in the office where such application is made.

Article 2 Municipal Housing Authorities.

Section 24-1-20

Short title.

This article may be referred to as the Housing Authorities Law.

Section 24-1-21

Legislative findings and declaration of necessity.

It is hereby declared that unsanitary or unsafe dwelling and public school accommodations exist in various cities of the state and that such unsafe or unsanitary conditions arise from overcrowding and concentration of population, the obsolete and poor condition of the buildings, improper planning, excessive land coverage, lack of proper light, air and space, unsanitary design and arrangement, lack of proper facilities and the existence of conditions which endanger life or property by fire and other causes; that in all such cities persons of low income are forced to reside in unsanitary or unsafe dwelling accommodations; that in various cities of the state there is a lack of safe or sanitary dwelling and public school accommodations available to all the inhabitants thereof and that consequently persons of low income are forced to occupy overcrowded and congested dwelling accommodations; that these conditions cause an increase in and spread of disease and crime and constitute a menace to the health, safety, morals and welfare of the citizens of the state and impair economic values; that the aforesaid conditions also exist in certain areas surrounding such cities; that these conditions cannot be remedied by the ordinary operations of private enterprises; that the clearance, replanning and reconstruction of the areas in which unsanitary or unsafe housing conditions exist and the provision of safe, sanitary and uncongested dwelling accommodations at such rentals that persons who now live in unsafe or unsanitary or congested dwelling accommodations can afford to live in safe, sanitary and uncongested dwelling accommodations, are public uses and purposes for which public money may be spent and private property acquired; and that it is in the public interest that work on such projects be instituted as soon as possible in order to relieve unemployment which constitutes an emergency. The necessity in the public interest for this article is hereby declared as a matter of legislative determination.

Section 24-1-22

Definitions.

The following terms, wherever used or referred to in this article, shall have the following respective meanings, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context:

(1) AUTHORITY or HOUSING AUTHORITY. A public body organized as a body corporate and politic in accordance with the provisions of this article for the purposes, with the powers and subject to the restrictions set forth.

- (2) CITY. Any city or incorporated town in the State of Alabama.
- (3) COUNCIL. The legislative body, council, board of commissioners or other body charged with governing the city.
- (4) CITY CLERK and MAYOR. The clerk, and the mayor or president of the board of commissioners, respectively, of the city or the officers thereof charged with the duties customarily imposed on the clerk and mayor respectively.
- (5) COMMISSIONER. One of the members of an authority appointed in accordance with the provisions of this article.
- (6) GOVERNMENT. Such term shall include the state and federal governments and any subdivision, agency or instrumentality, corporate or otherwise, of either of them.
- (7) STATE. The State of Alabama.
- (8) FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. Such term shall include the United States of America, the federal Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or any agency, instrumentality, corporate or otherwise, of the United States of America.
- (9) HOUSING PROJECT. Such term shall include all real and personal property, buildings and improvements, stores, offices, public school buildings, lands for farming and gardening and community facilities acquired or constructed or to be acquired or constructed pursuant to a single plan of undertaking to demolish, clear, remove, alter or repair unsanitary or unsafe housing or to provide dwelling accommodations at rentals within the means of persons of low income. This term may also be applied to the planning of the buildings and improvements, the acquisition of property, the demolition of existing structures, the construction, reconstruction, alteration and repair of the improvements and all other work in connection therewith.
- (10) COMMUNITY FACILITIES. Such term shall include real and personal property and buildings and equipment for recreational or social assemblies, for educational, health or welfare purposes and necessary utilities, when designed primarily for the benefit and use of the occupants of the dwelling accommodations.
- (11) PERSONS OF LOW INCOME. Persons receiving less than the income determined by the authority as the amount persons must receive to enable them to pay the rent necessary to secure safe, sanitary and uncongested dwelling accommodations, other than dwelling accommodations provided by the authority or any cities, within the boundaries of the authority. Such determinations by the authority from time to time shall be binding and conclusive for all purposes of this article.
- (12) BONDS. Any bonds, interim certificates, notes, debentures, warrants or other obligations of the authority issued pursuant to this article.

- (13) MORTGAGES. Such term shall include deeds of trust, mortgages, building and loan contracts or other instruments conveying real or personal property as security for bonds and conferring a right to foreclose and cause a sale thereof.
- (14) TRUST INDENTURE. Such term shall include instruments pledging the revenues of real or personal properties but not conveying such properties conferring a right to foreclose and cause a sale thereof.
- (15) CONTRACT. Any agreement of an authority with or for the benefit of an obligee whether contained in a resolution, trust indenture, mortgage, lease, bond or other instrument.
- (16) REAL PROPERTY. Such term shall include lands, lands under water, structures and any and all easements, franchises and incorporeal hereditaments and every estate and right therein, legal and equitable, including terms for years and liens by way of judgment, mortgage or otherwise.
- (17) OBLIGEE OF THE AUTHORITY or OBLIGEE. Such term shall include any bondholder, trustee or trustees for any bondholders, any lessor demising property to the authority used in connection with a housing project or any assignee or assignees of such lessor's interest, or any part thereof, and the United States of America, when it is a party to any contract with the authority.

Section 24-1-23

Procedure for incorporation of authority; boundaries of authority; denial of petition for incorporation; resubmission of petition after denial.

Any 25 residents of a city or of the area within 10 miles from the territorial boundaries thereof may file a petition with the city clerk setting forth that there is a need for an authority to function in the city and the surrounding area. Upon the filing of such a petition the city clerk shall give notice of the time, place and purpose of a public hearing at which the council will determine the need for an authority in the city and surrounding area. Such notice shall be given at the city's expense by publishing a notice, at least 10 days preceding the day on which the hearing is to be held, in a newspaper having a general circulation in the city and said surrounding area or, if there be no such newspaper, by posting such a notice in at least three public places within the city, at least 10 days preceding the day on which the hearing is to be held. Upon the date fixed for said hearing, held upon notice as provided in this section, an opportunity to be heard shall be granted to all residents and taxpayers of the city and surrounding area and to all other interested persons. After such a hearing, the council shall determine whether unsanitary or unsafe inhabited dwelling accommodations exist in the city and said surrounding area or whether there is a lack of safe or sanitary dwelling accommodations in the city and said surrounding area available for the inhabitants thereof. In determining whether dwelling accommodations are unsafe or unsanitary, the council shall take into consideration the following: the physical condition and age of the buildings; the degree of overcrowding; the percentage of land coverage; the light and air available to the inhabitants of such dwelling accommodations; the size and arrangement of the rooms; the sanitary facilities; and the extent to which conditions exist in such buildings which

endanger life or property by fire or other causes. If it shall determine that either or both of the above enumerated conditions exist, the council shall adopt a resolution so finding, which need not go into any detail other than the mere finding. Such resolution may be adopted at the meeting at which it is introduced by a vote of a majority of the members of the council present at such meeting. Such resolution shall take effect immediately and shall not be laid over or published or posted. The council shall promptly notify the mayor who shall thereupon appoint, as provided in this article, five commissioners to act as an authority. Said commission shall be a public body and a body corporate and politic upon the completion of the following proceedings: The commissioners shall present to the Secretary of the State of Alabama, an application signed by them, which shall set forth, without any detail other than the mere recital, that a notice has been given and public hearing has been held as aforesaid, that the council made the aforesaid determination after such hearing and that the mayor has appointed them as commissioners; the name and official residence of each of the commissioners, together with a certified copy of the appointment evidencing their right to office, the date and place of their induction into and taking of the oath of office and their desire that the housing authority become a public body and a body corporate and politic under this article; the term of office of each of the commissioners and the place where, if any, the official appointment of each of said members is kept of record; the name which is proposed for the corporation; the location of the principal office of the proposed corporation; and any other matter relating to the incorporation which the commissioners might choose to insert not inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama. The application shall be subscribed and sworn to by each of said commissioners before an officer authorized by the laws of the State of Alabama to take and certify oaths, who shall certify upon the application that he personally knows the commissioners and knows them to be the officers as asserted in the application, and that each subscribed and swore thereto in the officer's presence. The Secretary of State shall examine the application and if he finds that the name proposed for the corporation is not identical with that of a person or of any other corporation of the state or so nearly similar as to lead to confusion and uncertainty, he shall receive and file it and shall record it in an appropriate book of record in his office. When the application has been made, filed and recorded, as provided in this section, the authority shall constitute a public body and a body corporate and politic under the name proposed in the application. The Secretary of State shall make and issue to the said commissioners a certificate of incorporation pursuant to this article, under the seal of the state, and shall record the same with the application. The boundaries of such authority shall include said city and the area within 10 miles from the territorial boundaries of said city, but in no event shall it include the whole or a part of any other city nor any area included within the boundaries of another authority. In case an area lies within 10 miles of the boundaries of more than one city, such area shall be deemed to be within the boundaries of the authority embracing such area which was first established, all priorities to be determined on the basis of the time of the issuance of the aforesaid certificates by the Secretary of State. If the council, after a hearing as provided in this section, shall determine that neither of the above enumerated conditions exist, it shall adopt a resolution denying the petition. After three months shall have expired from the date of the denial of any such petition, subsequent petitions may be filed, as provided in this section, and new hearings and determinations made thereon. In any civil action or proceeding involving the validity or enforcement of, or relating to any contract of the authority, the authority shall be conclusively deemed to have been established in accordance with the provisions of this article upon proof of the issuance of the aforesaid certificate by the Secretary of State. A copy of such certificate, duly certified by the Secretary of State, shall be

admissible in evidence in any such civil action or proceeding, and shall be conclusive proof of the filing and contents thereof. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as affecting the boundaries heretofore established for any housing authority.

Section 24-1-24

Composition of authority; qualifications, appointment, term of office and compensation of housing commissioners; vacancies in office; quorum; officers and employees of authority; delegation of powers and duties by authority.

An authority shall consist of five commissioners appointed by the mayor, who shall designate the first chairman. None of the commissioners may be city officials. The commissioners who are first appointed shall be designated by the mayor to serve for terms of one, two, three, four and five years, respectively, from the date of their appointment. Thereafter, the term of office shall be five years. A commissioner shall hold office until his successor has been appointed and has qualified. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term. Three commissioners shall constitute a quorum. The mayor shall file with the city clerk a certificate of the appointment or reappointment of any commissioner and such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the due and proper appointment of such commissioner. A commissioner shall receive no compensation for his services but he shall be entitled to the necessary expenses including traveling expenses incurred in the discharge of his duties. However, commissioners serving on the authority board located in any Class 7 municipality, as defined in Section 11-40-12, may receive such compensation as set by the council. This compensation is not mandatory and the amount and whether or not such compensation is to be paid is within the discretion of the council. The authority may, in its discretion, refuse to pay any compensation authorized by the council in such Class 7 municipalities. When the office of the first chairman of the authority becomes vacant, the authority shall select a chairman from among its members. An authority shall select from among its members a vice-chairman, and it may employ a secretary, who shall be executive director, technical experts, attorneys and such other officers, agents and employees, permanent and temporary, as it may require and shall determine their qualifications, duties and compensation. An authority may delegate to one or more of its agents or employees such power or duties as it may deem proper.

Section 24-1-26

Conflicts of interest of commissioners or employees.

No commissioner or employee of an authority shall acquire any interest, direct or indirect, in any housing project or in any property included or planned to be included in any project, nor shall he have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or proposed contract for materials or services to be furnished or used in connection with any housing project. If any commissioner or employee of an authority owns or controls an interest, direct or indirect, in any property included or planned to be included in any housing project, he shall immediately disclose the same in writing to the authority, and such disclosure shall be entered upon the minutes of the authority. Failure to so disclose such interest shall constitute misconduct in office. However, no provision of this section shall be deemed to prohibit any bank, otherwise qualified, an officer, stockholder or

employee of which is a commissioner of a local housing authority, from serving such housing authority as a depository bank or fiscal agent. Nothing contained in this section shall prevent commissioners of housing authorities of cities or towns of less than 2,500 population, according to the last or any subsequent decennial census of the United States, from entering into contracts to supply materials or services to be furnished or used in connection with said housing project, provided such contract is entered into as the result of a competitive bid submitted on an invitation advertised for not less than three days.

Section 24-1-27

Powers and duties of authority generally.

- (a) An authority shall constitute a public body and a body corporate and politic exercising public powers, and having all the powers necessary or convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of this article, including the following powers in addition to others granted in this article:
- (1) To investigate into living, dwelling and housing conditions and into the means and methods of improving such conditions;
- (2) To determine where unsafe or unsanitary dwelling, public school or housing conditions exist;
- (3) To study and make recommendations concerning the plan of any city located within its boundaries in relation to the problem of clearing, replanning and reconstruction of areas in which unsafe or unsanitary dwelling, public school or housing conditions exist, and the provision of dwelling accommodations for persons of low income, and to cooperate with any city or regional planning agency;
- (4) To prepare, carry out and operate housing projects;
- (5) To provide for the construction, reconstruction, improvement, alteration or repair of any housing project or any part thereof;
- (6) To take over by purchase, lease or otherwise any housing project undertaken by any government or by any city located within its boundaries;
- (7) To manage, as agent of any city located within its boundaries, any housing project constructed or owned by such city;
- (8) To act as agent for the federal government in connection with the acquisition, construction, operation or management of a housing project, or any part thereof;
- (9) To arrange with any city located within its boundaries or with a government for the furnishing, planning, replanning, opening or closing of streets, roads, roadways, alleys or other places or facilities, or for the acquisition by such city, or a government, of property, options or property rights or for the furnishing of property or services in connection with a project;

- (10) To lease or rent any of the dwelling or other accommodations or any of the lands, buildings, structures or facilities embraced in any housing project and to establish and revise the rents or charges therefor;
- (11) To enter upon any building or property in order to conduct investigations or to make surveys or soundings;
- (12) To purchase, lease, obtain options upon, acquire by eminent domain, gift, grant, bequest, devise or otherwise, any property, real or personal, or any interest therein from any person, firm, corporation, city or government;
- (13) To sell, exchange, transfer, assign or pledge any property, real or personal, or any interest therein to any person, firm, corporation, city or government;
- (14) To own, hold, clear and improve property;
- (15) To pay over to the city in which the authority is organized all or any part of the proceeds received from the sale of any real or personal property; provided, however, that an authority may pay over such proceeds to the city in which it is organized only in such manner and to such extent that such payment will not violate the terms of any then existing contract to which the authority is a party; and, provided further, that an authority shall have no power to so pay over any part of the proceeds derived from the sale of any real or personal property acquired in connection with a redevelopment project, as that term is defined in Section 24-1-4;
- (16) To insure or provide for the insurance of the property or operations of the authority against such risks as the authority may deem advisable;
- (17) To procure insurance or guarantees from the federal government of the payment of any debts, or parts thereof, secured by mortgages made or held by the authority on any property included in any housing project;
- (18) To borrow money upon its bonds, notes, warrants, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness, and to secure the same by pledges of its revenues, and, subject to the limitations hereinafter imposed, by mortgages upon property held or to be held by it, or in any other manner;
- (19) In connection with any loan, to agree to limitations upon its right to dispose of any housing project, or part thereof, or to undertake additional housing projects;
- (20) In connection with any loan by a government, to agree to limitations upon the exercise of any powers conferred upon the authority by this article;
- (21) To invest any funds held in reserves or sinking funds, or any funds not required for immediate disbursement, in property or securities in which savings banks may legally invest funds subject to their control;
- (22) To sue and be sued;

- (23) To have a seal and to alter the same at pleasure;
- (24) To have perpetual succession;
- (25) To make and execute contracts and other instruments necessary or convenient to the exercise of the powers of the authority;
- (26) To make and from time to time amend and repeal bylaws, rules and regulations, not inconsistent with this article, to carry into effect the powers and purposes of the authority;
- (27) To conduct examinations and investigations and to hear testimony and take proof under oath, at public or private hearings, on any matter material for its information;
- (28) To issue subpoenas requiring the attendance of witnesses or the production of books and papers and to issue commissions for the examination of witnesses who are out of the state or unable to attend before the authority or excused from attendance;
- (29) To make available to such agencies, boards or commissions as are charged with the duty of abating nuisances or demolishing unsafe or unsanitary structures within its territorial limits, its findings and recommendations with regard to any building or property where conditions exist which are dangerous to the public health, morals, safety or welfare; and
- (30) To do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the powers given in this article.
- (b) Any of the investigations or examinations provided for in this article may be conducted by the authority, or by a committee appointed by it, consisting of one or more commissioners, or by counsel or by an officer or employee especially authorized by the authority to conduct it. Any commissioner, counsel for the authority or any person designated by it to conduct an investigation or examination shall have power to administer oaths, take affidavits and issue subpoenas or commissions.
- (c) An authority may exercise any or all of the powers conferred upon it in this article either generally, or with respect to any specific housing project or projects, through or by an agent or agents which it may designate, including any corporation or corporations which are or shall be formed under the laws of this state, and for such purposes an authority may cause one or more corporations to be formed under the laws of this state or may acquire the capital stock of any corporation or corporations. Any corporate agent, all of the stock of which shall be owned by the authority or its nominee or nominees, may, to the extent permitted by law, exercise any of the powers conferred upon the authority in this article.
- (d) In addition to all of the other powers conferred upon it in this section, an authority may do all things necessary and convenient to carry out the power expressly given in this article. No provisions with respect to the acquisition, operation or disposition of property by other public bodies shall be applicable to an authority, unless the Legislature shall specifically so state.

Section 24-1-28

Acquisition of property by eminent domain.

The authority shall have the right to acquire by eminent domain any property, real or personal, which it may deem necessary to carry out the purposes of this article, after the adoption by it of a resolution declaring that the acquisition of the property described therein is in the public interest and necessary for public use. The authority may exercise the power of eminent domain pursuant to the provisions of Title 18. Property already devoted to a public use may be acquired; provided, that no property belonging to any city within the boundaries of the authority, or to any government, may be acquired without its consent, and that no property belonging to a public utility corporation may be acquired without the approval of the Public Service Commission or other body having regulatory power over such corporation.

Section 24-1-29

Acquisition, etc., of property for government housing projects.

The authority may acquire by purchase, or by the exercise of its power of eminent domain as provided in Section 24-1-28, any property, real or personal, which it may deem necessary for any housing project being constructed or operated by a government. The authority upon such terms and conditions, and for such consideration as it shall determine, may convey title or deliver possession of such property, so acquired or purchased, to such government for use in connection with such housing project.

Section 24-1-30

Authority housing projects subject to local zoning, building, etc., laws.

All housing projects of an authority shall be subject to the planning, zoning, sanitary and building laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the locality in which the housing project is situated.

Section 24-1-31

Issuance of bonds by authority; types of and security for bonds generally; liability on bonds.

An authority shall have power to issue bonds, from time to time, in its discretion, for any of its corporate purposes. An authority shall also have power to issue or exchange refunding bonds for the purpose of paying, retiring, extending or renewing bonds previously issued by it. An authority may issue such types of bonds as it may determine, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, bonds on which the principal and interest are payable from income and revenues of the authority and from grants or contributions from the federal government or some other source. Such income and revenues securing the bonds may be:

(1) Exclusively the income and revenues of the housing project financed in whole or in part with the proceeds of such bonds;

- (2) Exclusively the income and revenues of certain designated housing projects, whether or not they are financed in whole or in part with the proceeds of such bonds; or
- (3) The income and revenues of the authority generally.

Any such bonds may be additionally secured by a pledge of any income or revenues of the authority, or a mortgage of any housing project, projects or other property of the authority. Neither the commissioners of an authority nor any person executing the bonds shall be liable personally on the bonds by reason of the issuance thereof. The bonds and other obligations of an authority (and such bonds and obligations shall so state on their face) shall not be a debt of the city, the state or any political subdivision thereof, and neither the city, nor the state or any political subdivision thereof, shall be liable thereon, nor in any event shall such bonds or obligations be payable out of any funds or properties other than those of said authority. The bonds shall not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter debt limitation or restriction.

Section 24-1-32

Form, denominations, terms, etc., of bonds; sale of bonds; issuance of interim certificates, etc.

The bonds of the authority shall be authorized by its resolution and shall be issued in one or more series and shall bear such date or dates, mature at such time or times, not exceeding 60 years from their respective dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, per annum payable semiannually, be in such denominations, which may be made interchangeable, be in such form, either coupon or registered, carry such registration privileges, be executed in such manner, be payable in such medium of payment, at such place or places, and be subject to such terms of redemption, with or without premium, as such resolution or its trust indenture or mortgage may provide. The bonds may be sold at public sale held after notice published once, at least 10 days prior to such sale, in a newspaper circulating in the city and in a financial newspaper published in the City of New York, New York, or in the City of New Orleans, Louisiana; provided, however, that such bonds may be sold to the federal government or to a government sponsored enterprise at private sale without any public advertisement. The bonds may be sold at such price or prices as the authority shall determine. Pending the authorization, preparation, execution or delivery of definitive bonds the authority may issue interim certificates, or other temporary obligations to the purchaser of such bonds. Such interim certificates, or other temporary obligations, shall be in such form, contain such terms, conditions and provisions, bear such date or dates and evidence such agreements relating to their discharge or payment or the delivery of definitive bonds as the authority may by resolution, trust indenture or mortgage determine. In case any of the officers whose signatures appear on any bonds or coupons shall cease to be such officers before the delivery of such bonds, such signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if they had remained in office until such delivery. The authority shall have power, out of any funds available therefor, to purchase any bonds issued by it at a price not more than the principal amount thereof and the accrued interest. All bonds so purchased shall be cancelled. This section shall not apply to the redemption of bonds. Any provision of any law to the contrary notwithstanding, any bonds, interim certificates or other obligations issued pursuant to this article are hereby declared to be negotiable instruments.

Section 24-1-33

Powers of authority to secure payment of bonds, etc.

In connection with the issuance of bonds or the incurring of any obligation under a lease and in order to secure the payment of such bonds or obligations, the authority shall have power:

- (1) To pledge by resolution, trust indenture, mortgage, subject to the limitations hereinafter imposed, or other contract all or any part of its rents, fees or revenues.
- (2) To covenant against mortgaging all or any part of its property, real or personal, then owned or thereafter acquired, or against permitting or suffering any lien thereon.
- (3) To covenant with respect to limitations on its right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any housing project, or any part thereof, or with respect to limitations on its right to undertake additional housing projects.
- (4) To covenant against pledging all or any part of its rents, fees and revenues to which its right then exists, or the right to which may thereafter come into existence, or against permitting or suffering any lien thereon.
- (5) To provide for the release of property, rents, fees and revenues from any pledge or mortgage, and to reserve rights and powers in, or the right to dispose of, property which is subject to a pledge or mortgage.
- (6) To covenant as to the bonds to be issued pursuant to any resolution, trust indenture, mortgage or other instrument and as to the issuance of such bonds in escrow, or otherwise, and as to the use and disposition of the proceeds thereof.
- (7) To covenant as to what other, or additional, debt may be incurred by it.
- (8) To provide for the terms, form, registration, exchange, execution and authentication of bonds.
- (9) To provide for the replacement of lost, destroyed or mutilated bonds.
- (10) To covenant that the authority warrants the title to the premises.
- (11) To covenant as to the rents and fees to be charged, the amount, calculated as may be determined, to be raised each year or other period of time by rents, fees and other revenues and as to the use and disposition to be made thereof.
- (12) To covenant as to the use of any or all of its property, real or personal.
- (13) To create or to authorize the creation of special funds in which there shall be segregated the proceeds of any loan or grant; all of the rents, fees and revenues of any housing project or projects or parts thereof; any moneys held for the payment of the costs of operation and

maintenance of any such housing projects or as a reserve for the meeting of contingencies in the operation and maintenance thereof; any moneys held for the payment of the principal and interest on its bonds or the sums due under its leases or as a reserve for such payments; and any moneys held for any other reserves or contingencies, and to covenant as to the use and disposal of the moneys held in such funds.

- (14) To redeem the bonds, to covenant for their redemption and to provide the terms and conditions thereof.
- (15) To covenant against extending the time for the payment of its bonds or interest thereon, directly or indirectly, by any means or in any manner.
- (16) To prescribe the procedure, if any, by which the terms of any contract with bondholders may be amended or abrogated, the amount of bonds the holders of which must consent thereto and the manner in which such consent may be given.
- (17) To covenant as to the maintenance of its property, the replacement thereof, the insurance to be carried thereon and the use and disposition of insurance moneys.
- (18) To vest in an obligee of the authority the right, in the event of the failure of the authority to observe or perform any covenant on its part to be kept or performed, to cure any such default and to advance any moneys necessary for such purpose, and the moneys so advanced may be made an additional obligation of the authority with such interest, security and priority as may be provided in any trust indenture, mortgage, lease or contract of the authority with reference thereto.
- (19) To covenant and prescribe as to the events of default and terms and conditions upon which any or all of its bonds shall become or may be declared due before maturity and as to the terms and conditions upon which such declaration and its consequences may be waived.
- (20) To covenant as to the rights, liabilities, powers and duties arising upon the breach by it of any covenant, condition or obligation.
- (21) To covenant to surrender possession of all or any part of any housing project or projects upon the happening of an event of default, as defined in the contract, and to vest in an obligee the right, without judicial proceedings, to take possession and to use, operate, manage and control such housing projects, or any part thereof, and to collect and receive all rents, fees and revenues arising therefrom in the same manner as the authority itself might do and to dispose of the moneys collected in accordance with the agreement of the authority with such obligee.
- (22) To vest in a trustee or trustees the right to enforce any covenant made to secure, to pay or, in relation to the bonds, to provide for the powers and duties of such trustee or trustees, to limit liabilities thereof and to provide the terms and conditions upon which the trustee or trustees or the holders of bonds or any proportion of them may enforce any such covenant.

- (23) To make covenants, other than in addition to the covenants expressly authorized in this section of like or different character.
- (24) To execute all instruments necessary or convenient in the exercise of the powers granted in this section or in the performance of its covenants or duties, which may contain such covenants and provisions, in addition to those above specified, as the government or any purchaser of the bonds of the authority may reasonably require.
- (25) To make such covenants and to do any and all such acts and things as may be necessary or convenient or desirable in order to secure its bonds, or, in the absolute discretion of the authority, tend to make the bonds more marketable, notwithstanding that such covenants, acts or things may not be enumerated in this section, it being the intent in this section to give the authority power to do all things in the issuance of bonds, in the provisions for their security, that are not inconsistent with the Constitution of the State of Alabama and no consent or approval of any judge or court shall be required thereof; provided, however, that the authority shall have no power to mortgage all or any part of its property, real or personal, except as provided in this article.

Section 24-1-34

Contracts, etc., with federal government for construction, etc., of housing projects.

In addition to the powers conferred upon the authority by other provisions of this article, the authority is empowered to borrow money or accept grants from the federal government for or in aid of the construction of any housing project which such authority is authorized by this article to undertake, to take over any land acquired by the federal government for the construction of a housing project, to take over or lease or manage any housing project constructed or owned by the federal government and, to this end, to enter into such contracts, mortgages, trust indentures, leases or other agreements as the federal government may require, including agreements that the federal government shall have the right to supervise and approve the construction, maintenance and operation of such housing project. It is the purpose and intent of this article to authorize every authority to do any and all things necessary to secure the financial aid and the cooperation of the federal government in the construction, maintenance and operation of any housing project which the authority is empowered by this article to undertake.

Section 24-1-35

Mortgages of authority property in connection with government financed projects.

In connection with any project financed in whole or in part by a government, the authority shall also have power to mortgage all or any part of its property, real or personal, then owned or thereafter acquired, and thereby:

(1) To vest in a government the right, upon the happening of an event of default, as defined in such mortgage, to foreclose such mortgage through judicial proceedings or through the exercise

of a power of sale without judicial proceedings, so long as a government shall be the holder of any of the bonds secured by such mortgage.

- (2) To vest in a trustee or trustees the right, upon the happening of an event of default, as defined in such mortgage, to foreclose such mortgage through judicial proceedings or through the exercise of a power of sale without judicial proceedings, but only with the consent of the government which aided in financing the housing project involved.
- (3) To vest in other obligees the right to foreclose such mortgage by judicial proceedings, but only with the consent of the government which aided in financing the project involved.
- (4) To vest in an obligee, including a government, the right, in foreclosing any mortgage as provided in this section, to foreclose such mortgage as to all or such part or parts of the property covered thereby as such obligee, in its absolute discretion, shall elect. The institution, prosecution and conclusion of any such foreclosure proceedings or the sale of any such parts of the mortgaged property shall not affect in any manner or to any extent the lien of the mortgage on the parts of the mortgaged property not included in such proceedings or not sold as provided in this section.

Section 24-1-36

Investment by state, fiduciaries, banks, etc., in bonds, etc., issued by authorities.

Notwithstanding any restrictions on investments contained in any laws of this state, the state and all public officers, municipal corporations, political subdivisions other than county and public bodies, all banks, bankers, trust companies, savings banks and institutions, building and loan associations, savings and loan associations, investment companies and other persons carrying on a banking business, all insurance companies, insurance associations and other persons carrying on an insurance business and all executors, administrators, guardians, trustees and other fiduciaries may legally invest any sinking funds, moneys or other funds belonging to them or within their control in any bonds or other obligations issued by a housing authority pursuant to this article or issued by any public housing authority or agency in the United States, when such bonds or other obligations are secured by a pledge of annual contributions to be paid by the United States government, or any agency thereof, and the amount of such actual contribution contracted to be paid shall be sufficient to assure the payment by such public housing authority or agency, of both principal and interest on such bonds as the same shall mature, and such bonds and other obligations shall be authorized security for all public deposits, it being the purpose of this section to authorize any persons, firms, corporations, associations, political subdivisions, bodies and officers, public or private, to use any funds owned or controlled by them, including, but not limited to, sinking, insurance, investment, retirement, compensation, pension and trust funds, held on deposit, for the purchase of any such bonds and funds or other obligations; provided, however, that nothing contained in this section shall be construed as relieving any person, firm, or corporation from any duty of exercising reasonable care in selecting securities.

Section 24-1-37

Remedies of obligee of authority generally.

An obligee of the authority shall have the right, in addition to all other rights which may be conferred on such obligee, subject only to any contractual restrictions binding upon such obligee:

- (1) By mandamus, or civil action, both of which may be joined in one action, to compel the authority, and the commissioners, officers, agents or employees thereof, to perform each and every term, provision and covenant contained in any contract of the authority, and to require the carrying out of any or all covenants and agreements of the authority and the fulfillment of all duties imposed upon the authority by this article.
- (2) By civil action to enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or the violation of any of the rights of such obligee of the authority.
- (3) By civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction to cause possession of any housing project, or any part thereof, to be surrendered to any obligee having the right to such possession pursuant to any contract of the authority.

Section 24-1-38

Remedies conferrable upon obligees of authority by trust indenture, mortgage, etc.

Any authority shall have power by its trust indenture, mortgage, lease or other contract to confer upon any obligee holding, or representing, a specified amount in bonds, lease or other obligations, the right upon the happening of an "event of default" as defined in such instrument:

- (1) By civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction to obtain the appointment of a receiver of any housing project of the authority, or any part or parts thereof. If such receiver be appointed, he may enter and take possession of such housing project or any part or parts thereof, and operate and maintain same, and collect and receive all fees, rents, revenues or other charges thereafter arising therefrom in the same manner as the authority itself might do and shall keep such moneys in a separate account or accounts and apply the same in accordance with the obligations of the authority as the court shall direct.
- (2) By civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction to require the authority and the commissioners thereof to account as if it and they were the trustees of an express trust.

Section 24-1-39

Remedies cumulative.

All the rights and remedies conferred by this article shall be cumulative and in addition to all other rights and remedies that may be conferred upon such obligee of the authority by law or by any contract with the authority.

Section 24-1-40

Exemption of authority property from mortgage foreclosures, levy and execution and judgment liens.

No interest of the authority in any property, real or personal, shall be subject to sale by the foreclosure of a mortgage thereon, either through judicial proceedings or the exercise of a power of sale contained in such mortgage, except in the case of the mortgages provided for in Section 24-1-35. All property of the authority shall be exempt from levy and sale by virtue of an execution, or other process, to the same extent as now enjoyed by the properties of towns, cities and counties of Alabama. No judgment against the authority shall be a charge or lien upon its property, real or personal. The provisions of this section shall not apply to or limit the right of obligees to foreclose any mortgage of the authority provided for in Section 24-1-35 and, in case of a foreclosure sale thereunder, to obtain a judgment for any deficiency due on the indebtedness secured thereby and issued on the full faith and credit of the authority. Such deficiency judgment shall be a lien and charge upon the property of the authority which may be levied on and sold by virtue of an execution or other judicial process for the purpose of satisfying such deficiency judgment.

Section 24-1-41

Title acquired by purchasers at sale of authority property subject to agreements with government.

Notwithstanding anything in this article to the contrary, any purchaser or purchasers at a sale of real or personal property of the authority, whether pursuant to any foreclosure of a mortgage, pursuant to judicial process or otherwise, shall obtain title subject to any contract between the authority and a government relating to the supervision by a government of the operation and maintenance of such property and the construction of improvements thereon.

Section 24-1-42

Security for funds deposited by authorities in banks and trust companies.

The authority may by resolution provide that all moneys deposited by it shall be secured by obligations of the United States or of the State of Alabama of a market value equal at all times to the amount of such deposits, by any securities in which savings banks may legally invest funds within their control or by an undertaking with such sureties as shall be approved by the authority faithfully to keep and pay over upon the order of the authority any such deposits and agreed interest thereon. All banks and trust companies are authorized to give any such security for such deposits.

Section 24-1-43

Annual report and recommendations of authority.

The authority shall at least once a year file with the mayor of the city a report of its activities for the preceding year, and shall make any recommendations with reference to any additional legislation or other action that may be necessary in order to carry out the purposes of this article.

Section 24-1-44

Enforcement of article and contracts of authority.

The authority and its commissioners shall be under a statutory duty to comply or to cause compliance strictly with all provisions of this article and the laws of the State of Alabama and, in addition thereto, with each and every term, provision and covenant in any contract of the authority on its part to be kept or performed.

Section 24-1-45

Conflicting provisions.

Insofar as the provisions of this article are inconsistent with the provisions of any other law, the provisions of this article shall be controlling.

Article 3 County Housing Authorities.

Section 24-1-60

Legislative findings and declaration of necessity.

It is hereby declared that unsanitary or unsafe dwelling and public school accommodations exist in various counties of the state and that such unsafe or unsanitary conditions arise from overcrowding and concentration of population, the obsolete and poor condition of the buildings, improper planning, excessive land coverage, lack of proper light, air and space, unsanitary design and arrangement, lack of proper facilities and the existence of conditions which endanger life or property by fire and other causes; that in all such counties persons of low income are forced to reside in unsanitary or unsafe dwelling accommodations; that in various counties of the state there is a lack of safe or sanitary dwelling and public school accommodations available to all the inhabitants thereof and that consequently persons of low income are forced to occupy overcrowded and congested dwelling accommodations; that these conditions cause an increase in and spread of disease and crime and constitute a menace to the health, safety, morals and welfare of the citizens of the state and impair economic values; that these conditions cannot be remedied by the ordinary operations of private enterprises; that the clearance, replanning and reconstruction of the areas in counties in which unsanitary or unsafe housing conditions exist and the provision of safe, sanitary and uncongested dwelling accommodations at such rentals that persons who now live in unsafe or unsanitary or congested dwelling accommodations can afford to live in safe, sanitary and uncongested dwelling accommodations, are public uses and purposes for which public money may be spent and private property acquired; that it is in the public interest that work on such projects be instituted as soon as possible in order to relieve unemployment which now constitutes an emergency. The necessity in the public interest for this article is hereby declared as a matter of legislative determination.

Section 24-1-61

Definitions.

The following terms, wherever used or referred to in this article shall have the following respective meaning, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context:

- (1) AUTHORITY or HOUSING AUTHORITY. A public body organized as a body corporate and politic in accordance with the provisions of this article for the purposes, with the powers and subject to the restrictions set forth in this article.
- (2) COUNTY. All of the county except that portion which lies within the territorial boundaries of any city or incorporated town.
- (3) COUNTY COMMISSION. The governing body of any county.
- (4) HOUSING COMMISSIONER. One of the members of an authority appointed in accordance with the provisions of this article.

- (5) GOVERNMENT. Such term shall include the state and federal governments and any subdivision, agency or instrumentality, corporate or otherwise, of either of them.
- (6) STATE. The State of Alabama.
- (7) FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. Such term shall include the United States of America, the federal Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or any agency, instrumentality, corporate or otherwise, of the United States of America.
- (8) HOUSING PROJECT. Such term shall include all real and personal property, buildings and improvements, stores, offices, public school buildings, lands for farming and gardening and community facilities acquired or constructed, or to be acquired or constructed, pursuant to a single plan of undertaking to demolish, clear, remove, alter or repair unsanitary or unsafe housing or to provide urban or rural dwelling accommodations at rentals within the means of persons of low income. The term "housing project" may also be applied to the planning of the buildings and improvements, the acquisition of property, the demolition of existing structures, the construction, reconstruction, alteration and repair of the improvements and all other work in connection therewith.
- (9) COMMUNITY FACILITIES. Such term shall include real and personal property and buildings and equipment for recreational or social assemblies, for educational, health or welfare purposes and necessary utilities, when designed primarily for the benefit and use of the occupants of the dwelling accommodations.
- (10) PERSONS OF LOW INCOME. Persons receiving less than the incomes determined by the authority as the amount persons must receive to enable them to pay the rent necessary to secure safe, sanitary and uncongested dwelling accommodations, other than dwelling accommodations provided by a public housing agency or authority of the county, within the boundaries of the authority. Such determinations by the authority from time to time shall be binding and conclusive for all purposes of this article.
- (11) BONDS. Any bonds, interim certificates, notes, debentures, warrants or other obligations of the authority issued pursuant to this article.
- (12) MORTGAGE. Such term shall include deeds of trust, mortgages, building and loan contracts or other instruments conveying real or personal property as security for bonds and conferring a right to foreclose and cause a sale thereof.
- (13) TRUST INDENTURE. Such term shall include instruments pledging the revenues of real or personal properties, but not conveying such properties or conferring a right to foreclose and cause a sale thereof.
- (14) CONTRACT. Any agreement of an authority with or for the benefit of an obligee, whether contained in a resolution, trust indenture, mortgage, lease, bond or other instrument.

(15) REAL PROPERTY. Such term shall include lands, lands under water, structures and any and all easements, franchises and incorporeal hereditaments and every estate and right therein, legal and equitable, including terms for years and liens by way of judgment, mortgage or otherwise, but only so far as such may, from time to time, be treated as real property by the laws of Alabama applicable to other persons or corporations.

(16) OBLIGEE OF THE AUTHORITY or OBLIGEE. Such term shall include any bondholder, trustee or trustees for any bondholders, any lessor demising property to the authority used in connection with a housing project or any assignee or assignees of such lessor's interest, or any part thereof, and the United States of America, when it is a party to any contract with the authority.

Section 24-1-62

Procedure for incorporation of authority; boundaries of authority; denial of petition for incorporation; resubmission of petition after denial.

Any 25 residents of a county may file a petition with the county commission setting forth that there is a need for an authority to function in the county. Upon the filing of such a petition, the county commission shall give notice of the time, place and purpose of a public hearing at which the county commission will determine the need for an authority in the county. Such notice by the county commission shall be given at the county's expense by publishing a notice, at least 10 days preceding the day on which the hearing is to be held, in a newspaper having a general circulation in the county or, if there be no such newspaper, by posting such a notice in at least three public places within the county at least 10 days preceding the day on which the hearing is to be held. Upon the date fixed for said hearing, held upon notice as provided in this section, an opportunity to be heard shall be granted to all residents and taxpayers of the county, and to all other interested persons. After such a hearing, the county commission shall determine whether unsanitary or unsafe inhabited dwelling accommodations exist in the county or whether there is a lack of safe or sanitary dwelling accommodations in such county available for the inhabitants thereof. In determining whether dwelling accommodations are unsafe or unsanitary, the county commission shall take into consideration the following: the physical condition and age of the buildings; the degree of overcrowding; the percentage of land coverage; the light and air available to the inhabitants of such dwelling accommodations; the size and arrangement of the rooms; the sanitary facilities; and the extent to which conditions exist in such buildings which endanger life or property by fire or other causes. If it shall determine that either or both of the above enumerated conditions exist, the county commission shall adopt a resolution so finding, which need not go into any detail other than the mere finding. Such resolution may be adopted at the meeting at which it is introduced by a vote of a majority of the members of the county commission present at such meeting. Such resolution shall take effect immediately and shall not be laid over or published or posted. After the county commission has adopted such resolution, it shall thereupon appoint, as provided in this article, five housing commissioners to act as an authority. Said county housing commission shall be a public body and a body corporate and politic upon the completion of the following proceedings: The housing commissioners shall present to the Secretary of the State of Alabama, an application signed by them, which shall set forth, without any detail other than the mere recital, that a notice has been given and public

hearing has been held as aforesaid, that the county commission made the aforesaid determination after such hearing and that the county commission has appointed them as housing commissioners of the authority; the name and official residence of each of the housing commissioners, together with a certified copy of the appointment evidencing their right to office, the date and place of their induction into and taking of the oath of office and their desire that the housing authority become a public body and a body corporate and politic under this article; the term of office of each of the housing commissioners and the place where, if any, the official appointment of each of said members is kept of record; the name which is proposed for the corporation; the location of the principal office of the proposed corporation; and any other matter relating to the incorporation which the housing commissioners might choose to insert not inconsistent with the Constitution and laws of the State of Alabama. The application shall be subscribed and sworn to by each of said housing commissioners before an officer authorized by the laws of the State of Alabama to take and certify oaths, who shall certify upon the application that he personally knows the housing commissioners and knows them to be the officers as asserted in the application, and that each subscribed and swore thereto in the officer's presence. The Secretary of State shall examine the application and if he finds that the name proposed for the corporation is not identical with that of a person or of any other corporation of the state or so nearly similar as to lead to confusion and uncertainty, he shall receive and file it and shall record it in an appropriate book of record in his office. When the application has been made, filed and recorded, as provided in this section, the authority shall constitute a public body and a body corporate and politic under the name proposed in the application. The Secretary of State shall make and issue to the said housing commissioners, a certificate of incorporation pursuant to this article, under the seal of the state, and shall record the same with the application. The boundaries of such authority shall include all of said county, except that portion which lies within the territorial boundaries of any city or incorporated town. If the county commission, after a hearing as provided in this section, shall determine that neither of the above enumerated conditions exist, it shall adopt a resolution denying the petition. After three months shall have expired from the date of the denial of any such petition, subsequent petitions may be filed as provided in this section and new hearings and determinations made thereon. In any civil action or proceeding involving the validity or enforcement of, or relating to any contract of the authority, the authority shall be conclusively deemed to have been established in accordance with the provisions of this article upon proof of the issuance of the aforesaid certificate by the Secretary of State. A copy of such certificate, duly certified by the Secretary of State, shall be admissible in evidence in any such civil action or proceeding, and shall be conclusive proof of the filing and contents thereof. Nothing contained in this article shall be construed as affecting the boundaries previously established for any housing authority of a city or town, nor shall this article affect any provisions of law defining the boundaries of any housing authority of a city or town.

Section 24-1-63

Composition of authority; qualifications, appointment, term of office and compensation of housing commissioners; officers and employees of authority; delegation of powers and duties by authority.

An authority shall consist of five housing commissioners appointed by the county commission, and the county commission shall designate the first chairman. None of the housing commissioners may be county officials or county employees. The housing commissioners who are first appointed shall be designated by the county commission to serve for terms of one, two, three, four and five years, respectively, from the date of their appointment. Thereafter, the term of office shall be five years. A housing commissioner shall hold office until his successor has been appointed and has qualified. Vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired term. Three housing commissioners shall constitute a quorum. The county commission shall record a certificate of the appointment or reappointment of any housing commissioner and such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the due and proper appointment of such housing commissioner. A housing commissioner shall receive no compensation for his services, but he shall be entitled to the necessary expenses including traveling expenses incurred in the discharge of his duties. When the office of the first chairman of the authority becomes vacant, the authority shall select a chairman from among its members. An authority shall select from among its members a vicechairman, and it may employ a secretary, who shall be executive director, technical experts, attorneys and such other officers, agents and employees, permanent and temporary, as it may require, and shall determine their qualifications, duties and compensation; except, that none of them shall be a county, state or municipal officer or employee, nor a partner of such, and none of them shall be, or have been for three years last past, a housing commissioner, nor the partner of a housing commissioner. An authority may delegate to one or more of its agents or employees such power or duties as it may deem proper.

Section 24-1-64

Removal of commissioners.

The county commission may remove a housing commissioner for inefficiency or neglect of duty or misconduct in office, but only after the housing commissioner shall have been given a copy of the charges against him, which may be made by any citizen of the county or by the county commission, at least 10 days previous to the hearing thereon, and shall have had an opportunity to be heard in person or by counsel. Any obligee of the authority may file with the county commission written charges that the authority is violating wilfully any law of the state or any term, provision or covenant in any contract to which the authority is a party. The county commission shall give each of the housing commissioners a copy of such charges, at least 10 days previous to the hearing thereon, and an opportunity to be heard in person or by counsel and shall, within 30 days after receipt of such charges, remove any housing commissioners of the authority who shall have been found to have acquiesced in any such wilful violation. A housing commissioner shall be deemed to have acquiesced in a wilful violation by the authority of a law of this state or of any term, provision or covenant contained in a contract to which the authority is a party, if he shall not have filed a written statement with the authority of his objections to such violation prior to the aforesaid filing or making of such charges. In the event of the removal of any housing commissioners, the county commission shall record the proceedings, together with the charges made against the housing commissioners and the findings thereon.

Section 24-1-66

Powers and duties of authority generally.

- (a) An authority shall constitute a public body and a body corporate and politic exercising public powers, and having all the powers necessary or convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of this article, including the following powers in addition to others granted in this article:
- (1) To investigate into living, dwelling and housing conditions and into the means and methods of improving such conditions;
- (2) To determine where unsafe or unsanitary dwelling, public school or housing conditions exist;
- (3) To study and make recommendations concerning the plan of the county in relation to the problem of clearing, replanning and reconstruction of areas in which unsafe or unsanitary dwelling, public school or housing conditions exist, and the provision of dwelling accommodations for persons of low income, and to cooperate with the county or any regional planning agency;
- (4) To prepare, carry out and operate housing projects;
- (5) To provide for the construction, reconstruction, improvement, alteration or repair of any housing project or any part thereof;
- (6) To take over by purchase, lease or otherwise any housing project undertaken by any government or by the county;
- (7) To manage as agent of the county any housing project constructed or owned by the county;
- (8) To act as agent for the federal government in connection with the acquisition, construction, operation or management of a housing project or any part thereof;
- (9) To arrange with any city or town or the county or with a government for the furnishing, planning, replanning, opening or closing of streets, roads, roadways, alleys or other places or facilities, or for the acquisition by the county or a government, of property, options or property rights or for the furnishing of property or services in connection with a project;
- (10) To lease or rent any of the dwelling or other accommodations or any of the lands, buildings, structures or facilities embraced in any housing project and to establish and revise the rents or charges therefor;
- (11) To enter upon any building or property in order to conduct investigations or to make surveys or soundings;
- (12) To purchase, lease, obtain options upon, acquire by eminent domain, gift, grant, bequest, devise or otherwise, any property, real or personal, or any interest therein from any person, firm, corporation, city, county or government;

- (13) To sell, exchange, transfer, assign or pledge any property, real or personal, or any interest therein to any person, firm, corporation, city, county or government;
- (14) To own, hold, clear and improve property;
- (15) To insure or provide for the insurance of the property or operations of the authority against such risks as the authority may deem advisable;
- (16) To procure insurance or guarantees from the federal government of the payment of any debts, or parts thereof, secured by mortgages made or held by the authority on any property included in any housing project;
- (17) To borrow money upon its bonds, notes, warrants, debentures or other evidences of indebtedness and to secure the same by pledges of its revenues, and, subject to the limitations hereinafter imposed, by mortgages upon property held or to be held by it, or in any other manner;
- (18) In connection with any loan, to agree to limitations upon its right to dispose of any housing project, or part thereof, or to undertake additional housing projects;
- (19) In connection with any loan by a government, to agree to limitations upon the exercise of any powers conferred upon the authority by this article;
- (20) To invest any funds held in reserves or sinking funds, or any funds not required for immediate disbursement, in property or securities in which savings banks may legally invest funds subject to their control;
- (21) To sue and be sued;
- (22) To have a seal and to alter the same at pleasure;
- (23) To have perpetual succession;
- (24) To make and execute contracts and other instruments necessary or convenient to the exercise of the powers of the authority;
- (25) To make and from time to time amend and repeal bylaws, rules and regulations, not inconsistent with this article, to carry into effect the powers and purposes of the authority;
- (26) To conduct examinations and investigations and to hear testimony and take proof under oath, at public or private hearings, on any matter material for its information;
- (27) To issue subpoenas requiring the attendance of witnesses or the production of books and papers and to issue commissions for the examination of witnesses who are out of the state or unable to attend before the authority, or excused from attendance;

- (28) To make available to such agencies, boards or commissions as are charged with the duty of abating nuisances or demolishing unsafe or unsanitary structures within its territorial limits, its findings and recommendations with regard to any building or property where conditions exist which are dangerous to the public health, morals, safety or welfare; and
- (29) To do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the powers given in this article.
- (b) Any of the investigations or examinations provided for in this article may be conducted by the authority, or by a committee appointed by it, consisting of one or more housing commissioners, or by counsel or by an officer or employee specially authorized by the authority to conduct it. Any housing commissioner, counsel for the authority or any person designated by it to conduct an investigation or examination shall have power to administer oaths, take affidavits and issue subpoenas or commissions.
- (c) An authority may exercise any or all of the powers conferred upon it in this article, either generally or with respect to any specific housing project or projects, through or by an agent or agents which it may designate, including any corporation or corporations which are or shall be formed under the laws of this state, and for such purposes an authority may cause one or more corporations to be formed under the laws of this state or may acquire the capital stock of any corporation or corporations. Any corporate agent, all of the stock of which shall be owned by the authority or its nominee or nominees, may, to the extent permitted by law, exercise any of the powers conferred upon the authority in this article.
- (d) In addition to all of the other powers conferred upon it in this section, an authority may do all things necessary and convenient to carry out the powers expressly given in this article. No provisions with respect to the acquisition, operation or disposition of property by other public bodies shall be applicable to an authority, unless the Legislature shall specifically so state.

Acquisition of property by eminent domain.

The authority shall have the right to acquire by eminent domain any property, real or personal, which is necessary to carry out the purposes of this article, after the adoption by it of a resolution declaring that the acquisition of the property described therein is in the public interest and necessary for public use. The authority may exercise the power of eminent domain pursuant to the provisions of Title 18, and any amendments thereto, or pursuant to the provisions of any other applicable eminent domain laws of the state. Property already devoted to a public use may be acquired; provided, that no property belonging to the county or to any government may be acquired without its consent and that no property belonging to a public utility corporation may be acquired without the approval of the Public Service Commission or other body having regulatory power over such corporation.

Section 24-1-68

Acquisition, etc., of property for government housing projects.

The authority may acquire by purchase or by the exercise of its power of eminent domain as provided in Section 24-1-67, any property, real or personal, which is necessary for any housing project being constructed or operated by a government. The authority upon such terms and conditions, and for such consideration as it shall determine, may convey title or deliver possession of such property, so acquired or purchased, to such government for use in connection with such housing project.

Section 24-1-69

Authority housing projects subject to local zoning, building, etc., laws.

All housing projects of an authority shall be subject to the planning, zoning, sanitary and building laws, ordinances and regulations applicable to the locality in which the housing project is situated.

Section 24-1-70

Issuance of bonds by authority; types of and security for bonds generally; liability on bonds.

An authority shall have power to issue bonds from time to time, in its discretion, for any of its corporate purposes. An authority shall also have power to issue or exchange refunding bonds for the purpose of paying, retiring, extending or renewing bonds previously issued by it. An authority may issue such types of bonds as it may determine, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing, bonds on which the principal and interest are payable from income and revenues of the authority and from grants or contributions from the federal government or some other source. Such income and revenues securing the bonds may be:

- (1) Exclusively the income and revenues of the housing project financed in whole or in part with the proceeds of such bonds;
- (2) Exclusively the income and revenues of certain designated housing projects, whether or not they are financed in whole or in part with the proceeds of such bonds; or
- (3) The income and revenues of the authority generally.

Any such bonds may be additionally secured by a pledge of any income or revenues of the authority, or a mortgage of any housing project, projects or other property of the authority. Neither the housing commissioners of an authority nor any person executing the bonds shall be liable personally on the bonds by reason of the issuance thereof. The bonds and other obligations of an authority (and such bonds and obligations shall so state on their face) shall not be a debt of the state or any political subdivision thereof, and neither the county, nor the state or any political subdivision thereof, shall be liable thereon, nor in any event shall such bonds or obligations be payable out of any funds or properties other than those of said authority. The bonds shall not constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter debt limitation or restriction.

Section 24-1-71

Form, denominations, terms, etc., of bonds; sale of bonds; issuance of interim certificates, etc.

The bonds of the authority shall be authorized by its resolution and shall be issued in one or more series and shall bear such date or dates, mature at such time or times, not exceeding 60 years from their respective dates, bear interest at such rate or rates, payable semiannually, be in such denominations, which may be made interchangeable, be in such form, either coupon or registered, carry such registration privileges, be executed in such manner, be payable in such medium of payment, at such place or places, and be subject to such terms of redemption, with or without premium, as such resolution or its trust indenture or mortgage may provide. The bonds may be sold at public sale held after notice published once, at least 10 days prior to such sale, in a newspaper circulating in the county and in a financial newspaper published in the City of New York, New York, or in the City of New Orleans, Louisiana; provided, however, that such bonds may be sold to the federal government or to a government sponsored enterprise at private sale without any public advertisement. The bonds may be sold at such price or prices as the authority shall determine. Pending the authorization, preparation, execution or delivery of definitive bonds, the authority may issue interim certificates, or other temporary obligations to the purchaser of such bonds. Such interim certificates, or other temporary obligations, shall be in such form, contain such terms, conditions and provisions, bear such date or dates and evidence such agreements relating to their discharge or payment or delivery of definitive bonds as the authority may by resolution, trust indenture or mortgage determine. In case any of the officers whose signatures appear on any bonds or coupons shall cease to be such officers before the delivery of such bonds, such signatures shall, nevertheless, be valid and sufficient for all purposes, the same as if they had remained in office until such delivery. The authority shall have power, out of any funds available therefor, to purchase any bonds issued by it at a price not more than the principal amount thereof and the accrued interest. All bonds so purchased shall be cancelled. This section shall not apply to the redemption of bonds. Any provision of any law to the contrary notwithstanding, any bonds, interim certificates or other obligations issued pursuant to this article are hereby declared to be negotiable instruments.

Section 24-1-72

Powers of authority to secure payment of bonds, etc.

In connection with the issuance of bonds or the incurring of any obligation under a lease and in order to secure the payment of such bonds or obligations, the authority shall have power:

- (1) To pledge by resolution, trust indenture, mortgage, subject to the limitations hereinafter imposed, or other contract all or any part of its rents, fees or revenues.
- (2) To covenant against mortgaging all or any part of its property, real or personal, then owned or thereafter acquired, or against permitting or suffering any lien thereon.
- (3) To covenant with respect to limitations on its right to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any housing project, or any part thereof, or with respect to limitations on its right to undertake additional housing projects.

- (4) To covenant against pledging all or any part of its rents, fees and revenues to which its right then exists, or the right to which may thereafter come into existence, or against permitting or suffering any lien thereon.
- (5) To provide for the release of property, rents, fees and revenues from any pledge or mortgage, and to reserve right and powers in, or the right to dispose of, property which is subject to a pledge or mortgage.
- (6) To covenant as to the bonds to be issued pursuant to any resolution, trust indenture, mortgage or other instrument and as to the issuance of such bonds in escrow, or otherwise, and as to the use and disposition of the proceeds thereof.
- (7) To covenant as to what other, or additional, debt may be incurred by it.
- (8) To provide for the terms, form, registration, exchange, execution and authentication of bonds.
- (9) To provide for the replacement of lost, destroyed or mutilated bonds.
- (10) To covenant that the authority warrants the title to the premises.
- (11) To covenant as to the rents and fees to be charged, the amount, calculated as may be determined, to be raised each year or other period of time by rents, fees and other revenues and as to the use and disposition to be made thereof.
- (12) To covenant as to the use of any or all of its property, real or personal.
- (13) To create, or to authorize the creation of, special funds in which there shall be segregated the proceeds of any loan or grant; all of the rents, fees and revenues of any housing project or projects or parts thereof; any moneys held for the payment of the costs of operation and maintenance of any such housing projects or as a reserve for the meeting of contingencies in the operation and maintenance thereof; any moneys held for the payment of the principal and interest on its bonds or the sum due under its leases or as a reserve for such payments; and any moneys held for any other reserves or contingencies, and to covenant as to the use and disposal of the moneys held in such funds.
- (14) To redeem the bonds, to covenant for their redemption and to provide the terms and conditions thereof.
- (15) To covenant against extending the time for the payment of its bonds, or interest thereon, directly or indirectly, by any means or in any manner.
- (16) To prescribe the procedure, if any, by which the terms of any contract with bondholders may be amended or abrogated, the amount of bonds the holders of which must consent thereto and the manner in which such consent may be given.

- (17) To covenant as to the maintenance of its property, the replacement thereof, the insurance to be carried thereon and the use and disposition of insurance moneys.
- (18) To vest in an obligee of the authority the right, in the event of the failure of the authority to observe or perform any covenant on its part to be kept or performed, to cure any such default and to advance any moneys necessary for such purpose, and the moneys so advanced may be made an additional obligation of the authority with such interest, security and priority as may be provided in any trust indenture, mortgage, lease or contract of the authority with reference thereto.
- (19) To covenant and prescribe as to the events of default and terms and conditions upon which any or all of its bonds shall become or may be declared due before maturity and as to the terms and conditions upon which such declaration and its consequences may be waived.
- (20) To covenant as to the rights, liabilities, powers and duties arising upon the breach by it of any covenant, condition or obligation.
- (21) To covenant to surrender possession of all or any part of any housing project or projects upon the happening of an event of default, as defined in the contract, and to vest in an obligee the right, without judicial proceedings, to take possession and to use, operate, manage and control such housing projects, or any part thereof, and to collect and receive all rents, fees and revenues arising therefrom in the same manner as the authority itself might do and to dispose of the moneys collected in accordance with the agreement of the authority with such obligee.
- (22) To vest in a trustee or trustees the right to enforce any covenant made to secure, to pay or, in relation to the bonds, to provide for the powers and duties of such trustee or trustees, to limit liabilities thereof and to provide the terms and conditions upon which the trustee or trustees or the holders of bonds or any proportion of them may enforce any such covenant.
- (23) To make covenants other than and in addition to the covenants expressly authorized in this section, of like or different character.
- (24) To execute all instruments necessary or convenient in the exercise of the powers granted in this section or in the performance of its covenants or duties, which may contain such covenants and provisions, in addition to those above specified, as the government or any purchaser of the bonds of the authority may reasonably require.
- (25) To make such covenants and to do any and all such acts and things as may be necessary or convenient or desirable in order to secure its bonds, or, in the absolute discretion of the authority, tend to make the bonds more marketable, notwithstanding that such covenants, acts or things may not be enumerated in this section, it being the intent in this section to give the authority power to do all things in the issuance of bonds, in the provisions for their security, that are not inconsistent with the Constitution of the State of Alabama and no consent or approval of any judge or court shall be required thereof; provided, however, that the authority shall have no power to mortgage all or any part of its property, real or personal, except as provided in Section 24-1-74.

Contracts, etc., with federal government for construction, etc., of housing projects.

In addition to the powers conferred upon the authority by other provisions of this article, the authority is empowered to borrow money or accept grants from the federal government for or in aid of the construction of any housing project which such authority is authorized by this article to undertake, to take over any land acquired by the federal government for the construction of a housing project, to take over or lease or manage any housing project constructed or owned by the federal government and, to this end, to enter into such contracts, mortgages, trust indentures, leases or other agreements as the federal government may require, including agreements that the federal government shall have the right to supervise and approve the construction, maintenance and operation of such housing project. It is the purpose and intent of this article to authorize every authority to do any and all things necessary to secure the financial aid and the cooperation of the federal government in the construction, maintenance and operation of any housing project which the authority is empowered by this article to undertake.

Section 24-1-74

Mortgages of authority property in connection with government financed projects.

In connection with any project financed in whole or in part by a government, the authority shall also have power to mortgage all or any part of its property, real or personal, then owned or thereafter acquired, and thereby:

- (1) To vest in a government the right, upon the happening of an event of default, as defined in such mortgage, to foreclose such mortgage through judicial proceedings or through the exercise of a power of sale without judicial proceedings, so long as a government shall be the holder of any of the bonds secured by such mortgage.
- (2) To vest in a trustee or trustees the right, upon the happening of an event of default, as defined in such mortgage, to foreclose such mortgage through judicial proceedings or through the exercise of a power of sale without judicial proceedings, but only with the consent of the government which aided in financing the housing project involved.
- (3) To vest in other obligees the right to foreclose such mortgage by judicial proceedings, but only with the consent of the government which aided in financing the project involved.
- (4) To vest in an obligee, including a government, the right in foreclosing any mortgage as provided in this section to foreclose such mortgage as to all or such part or parts of the property covered thereby as such obligee, in its absolute discretion, shall elect. The institution, prosecution and conclusion of any such foreclosure proceedings or the sale of any such parts of the mortgaged property shall not affect in any manner or to any extent the lien of the mortgage on the parts of the mortgaged property not included in such proceedings or not sold as provided in this section.

Remedies of obligee of authority generally.

An obligee of the authority shall have the right, in addition to all other rights which may be conferred on such obligee, subject only to any contractual restrictions binding upon such obligee:

- (1) By mandamus or civil action, both of which may be joined in one action, to compel the authority, and the housing commissioners, officers, agents or employees thereof, to perform each and every term, provision and covenant contained in any contract of the authority, and to require the carrying out of any or all covenants and agreements of the authority and the fulfillment of all duties imposed upon the authority by this article.
- (2) By civil action to enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful, or the violation of any of the rights of such obligee of the authority.
- (3) By civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction to cause possession of any housing project, or any part thereof, to be surrendered to any obligee having the right to such possession pursuant to any contract of the authority.

Section 24-1-76

Remedies conferrable upon obligees of authority by trust indenture, mortgage, etc.

Any authority shall have power by its trust indenture, mortgage, lease or other contract to confer upon any obligee holding or representing, a specified amount in bonds, lease or other obligations, the right upon the happening of an "event of default," as defined in such instrument:

- (1) By civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction to obtain the appointment of a receiver of any housing project of the authority, or any part or parts thereof. If such receiver be appointed, he may enter and take possession of such housing project, or any part or parts thereof, and operate and maintain same, and collect and receive all fees, rents, revenues or other charges thereafter arising therefrom in the same manner as the authority itself might do and shall keep such moneys in a separate account or accounts and apply the same in accordance with the obligations of the authority as the court shall direct.
- (2) By civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction to require the authority and the housing commissioners thereof to account as if it and they were the trustees of an express trust.

Section 24-1-77

Remedies cumulative.

All the rights and remedies conferred by this article shall be cumulative and in addition to all other rights and remedies that may be conferred upon such obligee of the authority by law or by any contract with the authority.

Exemption of authority property from mortgage foreclosures, levy and execution and judgment liens.

No interest of the authority in any property, real or personal, shall be subject to sale by the foreclosure of a mortgage thereon, either through judicial proceedings or the exercise of a power of sale contained in such mortgage, except in the case of the mortgages provided for in Section 24-1-74. All property of the authority shall be exempt from levy and sale by virtue of an execution, or other process, to the same extent as now enjoyed by the properties of towns, cities and counties of Alabama. No judgment against the authority shall be a charge or lien upon its property, real or personal. The provisions of this section shall not apply to or limit the right of obligees to foreclose any mortgage of the authority provided for in Section 24-1-74 and, in case of a foreclosure sale thereunder, to obtain a judgment for any deficiency due on the indebtedness secured thereby and issued on the full faith and credit of the authority. Such deficiency judgment shall be a lien and charge upon the property of the authority which may be levied on and sold by virtue of an execution or other judicial process for the purpose of satisfying such deficiency judgment.

Section 24-1-79

Title acquired by purchasers at sale of authority property subject to agreements with government.

Notwithstanding anything in this article to the contrary, any purchaser or purchasers at a sale of real or personal property of the authority, whether pursuant to any foreclosure of a mortgage, pursuant to judicial process or otherwise, shall obtain title subject to any contract made prior to the accrual of the purchaser's right between the authority and a government relating to the supervision by a government of the operation and maintenance of such property and the construction of improvements thereon.

Section 24-1-80

Security for funds deposited by authorities in banks and trust companies.

The authority may by resolution provide that all moneys deposited by it shall be secured by obligations of the United States or of the State of Alabama of a market value equal at all times to the amount of such deposits, by any securities in which savings banks may legally invest funds within their control or by an undertaking with such sureties, as shall be approved by the authority, faithfully to keep and pay over upon the order of the authority any such deposits and agreed interest thereon, and all banks and trust companies are authorized to give any such security for such deposits.

Section 24-1-81

Low income housing in rural areas.

Without limiting the generality of other provisions of this article, a county housing authority is empowered to borrow money, accept grants and exercise its other powers under this article to provide housing for persons of low income in rural areas. The undertaking of the construction of any dwelling or dwellings under this section shall constitute a "housing project" within the meaning of this article. To these ends, the county housing authority is authorized to enter into such long-term leases or purchase agreements or otherwise to rent or sell housing to persons of low income in rural areas as such county authority deems necessary in order to assure the achievement of the objectives of this article. Such leases or agreements may include such covenants as the county authority deems appropriate regarding the dwelling or dwellings, and the tracts contiguous thereto, which covenants, notwithstanding any rule of law to the contrary, may be made to run with the land where the county authority deems it necessary. The owner of any land on which an unsanitary and unsafe dwelling or dwellings are located may file an application with the county authority requesting that it provide for the construction of a safe and sanitary dwelling or dwellings for persons of low income to be located on said land, or that portion thereof, to be conveyed by said owner to the county housing authority.

Section 24-1-82

Annual report and recommendations of authority.

The county housing authority shall, at least once a year, file with the county commission a report of its activities for the preceding year, and shall make any recommendations with reference to any additional legislation or other action that may be necessary in order to carry out the purposes of this article.

Section 24-1-83

Enforcement of article and contracts of authority; competitive bidding required on certain contracts.

The authority and its housing commissioners shall be under a statutory duty to comply or to cause compliance strictly with all provisions of this article and the laws of the State of Alabama and in addition thereto, with each and every term, provision and covenant in any contract of the authority on its part to be kept or performed, and shall make no contract for the construction of any house or building costing more than \$100.00 or the purchase of any material therefor until after three weeks' advertising for bids and a public letting to the lowest responsible bidder.

Section 24-1-84

Conflicting provisions.

Insofar as the provisions of this article are inconsistent with other provisions of this Code, the provisions of this article shall be controlling.

Article 4 Regional and Consolidated Housing Authorities.

Section 24-1-100

Short title.

This article may be referred to as the "Supplemental Housing Authorities Law."

Section 24-1-101

Definitions.

The following terms, wherever used in this article, shall have the following respective meanings, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context:

- (1) AUTHORITY or HOUSING AUTHORITY. Any corporate body created pursuant to this article or this chapter.
- (2) MUNICIPALITY. Any city or incorporated town in the state.
- (3) FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. The United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof.
- (4) GOVERNING BODY. The legislative body, council, board of commissioners, county commission or other body charged with governing the city, town or county, as the case may be.

Section 24-1-102

Procedure for incorporation.

If the governing body of each of two or more contiguous counties by resolution declares that there is a need for one housing authority to be created for all of such counties to exercise in such counties powers and other functions prescribed for a regional housing authority, a public body corporate and politic to be known as a regional housing authority shall, after the commissioners thereof file an application with the Secretary of State as provided in this section, exist for all of such counties and exercise its powers and other functions in such counties; and, thereupon, any county housing authority created for any of such counties shall cease to exist, except for the purpose of winding up its affairs and executing a deed to the regional housing authority as provided in this section; provided, that the governing body of a county shall not adopt a resolution as aforesaid if there is a county housing authority created for such county which has any bonds or notes outstanding unless, first, all holders of such bonds and notes consent in writing to the substitution of such regional housing authority in lieu of such county housing authority on all such bonds and notes and, second, the commissioners of such county housing authority adopt a resolution consenting to the transfer of all the rights, contracts, obligations and property, real and personal, of such county housing authority to such regional housing authority as provided in this section; and provided further, that when the above two conditions are

complied with and such regional housing authority is created and authorized to exercise its powers and other functions, all rights, contracts, agreements, obligations and property, real and personal, of such county housing authority shall be in the name of and vest in such regional housing authority, and all obligations of such county housing authority shall be the obligations of such regional housing authority, and all rights and remedies of any person against such county housing authority may be asserted, enforced and prosecuted against such regional housing authority to the same extent as they might have been asserted, enforced and prosecuted against such county housing authority. When any real property of a county housing authority vests in a regional housing authority as provided in this section, the county housing authority shall execute a deed of such property to the regional housing authority, which, thereupon, shall file such deed in the office provided for the filing of deeds; provided, that nothing contained in this sentence shall affect the vesting of property in the regional housing authority as provided in this section. The governing body of each of two or more contiguous counties shall by resolution declare that there is a need for one regional housing authority to be created for all of such counties to exercise in such counties the powers and other functions prescribed for a regional housing authority only if such governing body finds that unsanitary or unsafe inhabited dwelling accommodations exist in such county or there is a shortage of safe or sanitary dwelling accommodations in such county available to persons of low income at rentals they can afford and that a regional housing authority would be a more efficient or economical administrative unit than the housing authority of such county to undertake housing projects for persons of low income in such county.

Section 24-1-103

Area of operation.

The area of operation or boundaries of a regional housing authority shall include, except as otherwise provided elsewhere in this article, all of the counties for which such regional housing authority is created and established; provided, that a regional housing authority shall not undertake any housing project or projects within the boundaries of any municipality or housing authority unless a resolution shall have been adopted by the governing body of such municipality and also by any housing authority which shall have been previously established and authorized to exercise its powers in such municipality, declaring that there is a need for the regional housing authority to exercise its powers within such municipality.

Section 24-1-104

Procedure for increase of area of operation.

The area of operation or boundaries of a regional housing authority shall be increased from time to time to include one or more additional contiguous counties not already within a regional housing authority, if the governing body of each of the counties then included in the area of operation of such regional housing authority, the commissioners of the regional housing authority and the governing body of each such additional county or counties each adopt a resolution declaring that there is a need for the inclusion of such additional county or counties in the area of operation of such regional housing authority. Upon the adoption of such resolutions, any county housing authority created for any such additional county shall cease to exist, except

for the purpose of winding up its affairs and executing a deed to the regional housing authority as provided in this section; provided, however, that such resolution shall not be adopted if there is a county housing authority created for any such additional county which has any bonds or notes outstanding unless, first, all holders of such bonds and notes consent in writing to the substitution of such regional housing authority in lieu of such county housing authority as the obligor thereon and, second, the commissioners of such county housing authority adopt a resolution consenting to the transfer of all the rights, contracts, obligations and property, real and personal, of such county housing authority to such regional housing authority as provided in this section; and provided further, that when the above two conditions are complied with and the area of operation of such regional housing authority is increased to include such additional county, as provided in this section, all rights, contracts, agreements, obligations and property, real and personal, of such county housing authority shall be in the name of and vest in such regional housing authority, all obligations of such county housing authority shall be the obligations of such regional housing authority and all rights and remedies of any person against such county housing authority may be asserted, enforced and prosecuted against such regional housing authority to the same extent as they might have been asserted, enforced and prosecuted against such county housing authority. When any real property of a county housing authority vests in a regional housing authority as provided in this section, the county housing authority shall execute a deed of such property to the regional housing authority, which thereupon shall file such deed in the office provided for the filing of deeds, provided that nothing contained in this sentence shall affect the vesting of property in the regional housing authority as provided in this section. The governing body of each of the counties in the regional housing authority, the commissioners of the regional housing authority and the governing body of each such additional county or counties shall by resolution declare that there is a need for the inclusion of such county or counties in the area of operation of the regional housing authority only if the governing body of each such additional county or counties finds that unsanitary or unsafe inhabited dwelling accommodations exist in such county or there is a shortage of safe or sanitary dwelling accommodations in such county available to persons of low income at rentals they can afford and the governing body of each of the counties then included in the area of operation of the regional housing authority, the commissioners of the regional housing authority and the governing body of each such additional county or counties find that the regional housing authority would be a more efficient or economical administrative unit if the area of operation of the regional housing authority was increased to include such additional county or counties.

Section 24-1-105

Procedure for decrease of area of operation.

The area of operation or boundaries of a regional housing authority shall be decreased from time to time to exclude one or more counties from such area if the governing body of each of the counties in such area and the commissioners of the regional housing authority each adopt a resolution declaring that there is a need for excluding such county or counties from such area; provided, that no action may be taken pursuant to this section if the regional housing authority has outstanding any bonds or notes, unless all holders of such bonds and notes consent in writing to such action; and provided further, that if such action decreases the area of operation of the regional housing authority to only one county, such authority shall thereupon constitute and

become a housing authority for such county, in the same manner and effect and with the same boundaries, functions, rights, powers, duties, privileges, immunities and limitations as though such authority were created and constituted a public and corporate body for such county pursuant to this chapter, and the commissioners of such authority shall be thereupon appointed as provided in this chapter for the appointment of commissioners of a housing authority created for a county. The governing body of each of the counties in the area of operation of the regional housing authority and the commissioners of the regional housing authority shall adopt a resolution declaring that there is a need for excluding a county or counties from such area only if: Each such governing body of the counties to remain in the area of operation of the regional housing authority and the commissioners of the regional housing authority find that, because of facts arising or determined subsequent to the time when such area first included the county or counties to be excluded, the regional housing authority would be a more efficient or economical administrative unit if such county or counties were excluded from such area; and, the governing body of each such county or counties to be excluded and the commissioners of the regional housing authority each also find that, because of the aforesaid changed facts, another housing authority for such county or counties would be a more efficient or economical administrative unit to function in such county or counties. Nothing contained in this section shall be construed as preventing a county or counties excluded from the area of operation of a regional housing authority, as provided in this section, from thereafter being included within the area of operation or boundaries of any housing authority in accordance with this article or this chapter. Any property held by a regional housing authority within a county or counties excluded from the area of operation of such authority, as provided in this section, shall, as soon as practicable after the exclusion of said county or counties, respectively, be disposed of by such authority in the public interest.

Section 24-1-106

Public hearings and application to Secretary of State required for incorporation or change in area of operation.

The governing body of a county shall not adopt any resolution authorized by Sections 24-1-102, 24-1-104 or 24-1-105 unless a public hearing has first been held which shall conform, except as otherwise provided in this article, to the requirements of this chapter for hearings to determine the need for a housing authority of a county; provided, that such hearings may be held by the governing body without a petition therefor. No housing authority shall constitute a body corporate and politic under this article until the commissioners of such authority have filed and recorded an application therefor with the Secretary of State, which shall conform, insofar as may be applicable, to the provisions of this chapter for the making, filing and recording of an application with the Secretary of State by the commissioners of a housing authority created for a county; provided, that any such application filed and recorded under this article shall set forth that the public hearing or hearings, as required by this article, have been held. In connection with the issuance of bonds or the incurring of other obligations, a regional housing authority may covenant as to limitations on its right to adopt resolutions relating to the increase or decrease of its area of operation.

Section 24-1-107

Housing commissioners - Appointment, term of office and removal; filling of vacancies; certificate; powers and duties generally; quorum; chairman and other officers.

The governing body of each county included in a regional housing authority shall appoint one person as a commissioner of such authority, and each such commissioner to be first appointed by the governing body of a county may be appointed at or after the time of the adoption of the resolution declaring the need for such regional housing authority or declaring the need for the inclusion of such county in the area of operation of such regional housing authority. When the area of operation of a regional housing authority is increased to include an additional county or counties as provided in this article, the governing body of each such county shall thereupon appoint one additional person as a commissioner of the regional housing authority. The governing body of each county shall appoint the successor of the commissioner appointed by it. If any county is excluded from the area of operation of a regional housing authority, the office of the commissioner of such regional housing authority appointed by the governing body of such county shall be thereupon abolished. If the area of operation of a regional housing authority consists at any time of an even number of counties, the commissioners of the regional housing authority appointed by the governing bodies of such counties shall appoint one additional commissioner whose term of office shall be as provided in this section for a commissioner of a regional housing authority, except that such term shall end at any earlier time that the area of operation of the regional housing authority shall be changed to consist of an odd number of counties. The commissioners of such authority appointed by the governing bodies of such counties shall likewise appoint each person to succeed such additional commissioner; provided, that the term of office of such person begins during the terms of office of the commissioners appointing him. A certificate of the appointment of any commissioner of a regional housing authority shall be signed by the appointing officer or officers and filed with the other records of the regional housing authority and shall be conclusive evidence of the due and proper appointment of such commissioner. The commissioners of a regional housing authority shall be appointed for terms of five years, except that all vacancies shall be filled for the unexpired terms. Each commissioner shall hold office until his successor has been appointed and has qualified, except as otherwise provided in this section. For inefficiency or neglect of duty or misconduct in office, a commissioner of a regional housing authority may be removed by the officer or officers, or their successors, appointing such commissioner, but he shall be removed only after he has been given a copy of the charges at least 10 days prior to the hearing thereon and has had an opportunity to be heard in person or by counsel. In the event of the removal of such commissioner, a record of the proceedings, together with the charges and findings thereon, shall be filed with the other records of the regional housing authority. The commissioners shall constitute the regional housing authority, and the powers of such authority shall be vested in such commissioners in office from time to time. The commissioners of a regional housing authority shall elect a chairman from among the commissioners and shall have power to select or employ such other officers and employees as the regional housing authority may require. A majority of the commissioners of a regional housing authority shall constitute a quorum of such authority for the purpose of conducting its business and exercising its powers and for all other purposes.

Section 24-1-108

Housing commissioners - Meetings; residence.

Nothing contained in this article or in other acts shall prevent meetings of the commissioners of a housing authority anywhere within the perimeter boundaries of the area of operation or boundaries of the authority or within any additional area where the housing authority is authorized to undertake a housing project, nor to prevent the appointment of any person as a commissioner of the authority who resides within such boundaries of such additional area and who is otherwise eligible for such appointment under this article or this chapter.

Section 24-1-109

Rights, powers, etc., of authority and commissioners generally.

Except as otherwise provided in this article, a regional housing authority and the commissioners thereof shall, within the area of operation of such regional housing authority, have the same functions, rights, powers, duties, privileges, immunities and limitations provided for housing authorities created for counties and the commissioners of such housing authorities, and all the provisions of law applicable to housing authorities created for counties and the commissioners of such authorities shall be applicable to regional housing authorities and the commissioners thereof; provided, that a regional housing authority or a county housing authority shall not be subject to the limitations provided in Section 24-1-6 with respect to housing projects for persons of low income in rural areas.

Section 24-1-110

Consolidated housing authorities.

If the governing body of each of two or more municipalities by resolution declares that there is a need for one housing authority for all of such municipalities to exercise in such municipalities the powers and other functions prescribed for a housing authority, a public body corporate and politic, to be known as a consolidated housing authority, with such corporate name as it selects, shall thereupon exist for all of such municipalities and exercise its powers and other functions within its area of operation, as defined in this section, including the power to undertake projects therein; and, thereupon, any housing authority created for any of such municipalities shall cease to exist except for the purpose of winding up its affairs and executing a deed of its real property to the consolidated housing authority. The creation of a consolidated housing authority and the finding of need therefor shall be subject to the same provisions and limitations of this article as are applicable to the creation of a regional housing authority and that all of the provisions of this article applicable to regional housing authorities and the commissioners thereof shall be applicable to consolidated housing authorities and the commissioners thereof. The area of operation or boundaries of a consolidated housing authority shall include all of the territory within the boundaries of each municipality joining in the creation of such authority, together with any additional territory included within the boundaries of a housing authority that has been created for such municipality; except, that such area of operation may be changed to include or exclude any municipality or municipalities, with its aforesaid additional territory, in the same manner and under the same provisions as provided in this article for changing the area of

operation of a regional housing authority by including or excluding a contiguous county or counties. For all such purposes, the term "county" shall be construed as meaning "municipality," the term "governing body" in Section 24-1-107 shall be construed as meaning "mayor or other executive head of the municipality," and the terms "county housing authority" and "regional housing authority" shall be construed as meaning "housing authority of the city" and "consolidated housing authority," respectively, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context. Except as otherwise provided in this article, a consolidated housing authority and the commissioners thereof shall, within the area of operation of such consolidated housing authority, have the same functions, rights, powers, duties, privileges, immunities and limitations as those provided for housing authorities created for municipalities, counties or groups of counties and the commissioners of such housing authorities, in the same manner as though all the provisions of law applicable to housing authorities created for municipalities, counties or groups of counties were applicable to consolidated housing authorities.

Section 24-1-111

Operation of housing authorities in municipality outside area of operation.

In addition to its other powers, any housing authority may exercise any or all of its powers within the territorial boundaries of any municipality not included in the area of operation of such housing authority, for the purpose of planning, undertaking, financing, constructing and operating a housing project or projects within such municipality; provided, that a resolution shall have been adopted by the governing body of such municipality in which the authority is to exercise its powers and by any housing authority previously established by such municipality and authorized to exercise its powers therein declaring that there is a need for the aforesaid housing authority to exercise its powers within such municipality.

Section 24-1-112

Procedure for adoption of resolution authorizing operation of housing authority in municipality.

No governing body of a municipality shall adopt a resolution as provided in Sections 24-1-103 or 24-1-111 declaring that there is a need for a housing authority, other than a housing authority established by such municipality, to exercise its powers within such municipality, unless a public hearing has first been held by such governing body and unless such governing body shall have found, in substantially the following terms: That unsanitary or unsafe inhabited dwelling accommodations exist in such municipality or that there is a shortage of safe or sanitary dwelling accommodations in such municipality available to persons of low income at rentals they can afford and that these conditions can be best remedied through the exercise of the aforesaid housing authority's powers within the territorial boundaries of such municipality; provided, that such findings shall not have the effect of thereafter preventing such municipality from establishing a housing authority or joining in the creation of a consolidated housing authority or the increase of the area of operation of a consolidated housing authority. The clerk, or the officer with similar duties, of the municipality shall give notice of the public hearing, and such hearing shall be held in the manner provided in Section 24-1-23 for a public hearing by a council to

determine the need for a housing authority in the municipality. During the time that, pursuant to these findings, a housing authority has outstanding, or is under contract to issue, any evidences of indebtedness for a project within the municipality, no other housing authority may undertake a project within such municipality without the consent of said housing authority which has such outstanding indebtedness or obligation.

Section 24-1-113

Agreements to secure federal contributions and loans.

In any contract or amendatory or superseding contract for a loan and annual contributions heretofore or hereafter entered into between a housing authority and the federal government with respect to any housing project undertaken by said housing authority, any such housing authority is authorized to make such covenants, including covenants with holders of obligations of said authority issued for purposes of the project involved, and to confer upon the federal government such rights and remedies as said housing authority deems necessary to assure the fulfillment of the purposes for which the housing project was undertaken. In any such contract, the housing authority may, notwithstanding any other provisions of law, agree to sell and convey the project, including all lands appertaining thereto, to which such contract relates to the federal government upon the occurrence of such conditions or upon such defaults on obligations for which any of the annual contributions provided in said contract are pledged, as may be prescribed in such contract, and at a price, which may include the assumption by the federal government of the payment, when due, of the principal of and interest on outstanding obligations of the housing authority issued for purposes of the housing project involved, determined as prescribed in such contract and upon such other terms and conditions as are therein provided. Any such housing authority is hereby authorized to enter into such supplementary contracts and to execute such conveyances as may be necessary to carry out the provisions of this section. Notwithstanding any other provisions of law, any contracts or supplementary contracts or conveyances made or executed pursuant to the provisions of this section shall not be or constitute a mortgage within the meaning or for the purposes of any of the laws of this state.

Section 24-1-114

Bonds and other obligations of authorities legal investments.

The bonds and other obligations issued by any housing authority pursuant to this article or this chapter shall be security for public deposits and legal investments to the same extent and for the same persons, institutions, associations, corporations, public and private bodies, including all public bodies except counties, and officers as are bonds or other obligations issued pursuant to this chapter.

Section 24-1-115

Assistance and cooperation by municipalities, counties, etc.

Any municipality, county or other public body shall have the same rights and powers to aid and cooperate in the development or administration of any housing project pursuant to this article or this chapter as such public body has under any provision of law relating to its aiding or cooperating in the development or administration of housing projects by a housing authority organized pursuant to Article 2 of this chapter or other laws of this state.

Section 24-1-116

Cooperation of authorities.

Any two or more authorities may join or cooperate with one another in the exercise, either jointly or otherwise, of any or all of their powers for the purpose of financing (including the issuance of bonds, notes or other obligations and giving security therefor), planning, undertaking, owning, constructing, operating or contracting with respect to a housing project or projects located within the boundaries of any one or more of said authorities. For such purpose an authority may by resolution prescribe and authorize any other housing authority or authorities so joining or cooperating with it to act on its behalf with respect to any or all of such powers. Any authorities joining or cooperating with one another may by resolutions appoint from among the commissioners of such authorities an executive committee with full power to act on behalf of such authorities with respect to any or all of their powers, as prescribed by resolutions of such authorities.

Section 24-1-117

Powers conferred by article supplemental.

The powers conferred by this article shall be in addition and supplemental to the powers conferred by any other law, and nothing contained in this article shall be construed as limiting any other powers of a housing authority.

Article 5 Cooperation of Cities, Counties, etc., With Housing Authorities.

Section 24-1-130

Legislative findings and declaration of necessity.

It is hereby declared that unsanitary or unsafe dwelling and public school accommodations exist in various cities of the state and in the area surrounding such cities; that consequently persons of low income are forced to reside in and use such dwelling and public school accommodations; that these conditions cause an increase in and spread of disease and crime and constitute a menace to the health, safety, morals and welfare of the citizens of the state and impair economic values; that the clearance, replanning and reconstruction of the areas in which unsanitary or unsafe housing conditions exist and the provision of safe and sanitary dwelling and public school accommodations at such rentals that persons who now live in unsafe or unsanitary or congested dwelling accommodations or in overcrowded and congested dwelling accommodations can afford to live in safe or sanitary or uncongested dwelling accommodations, are public uses and purposes for which private property may be acquired; and that it is in the public interest that work on such projects be instituted as soon as possible in order to relieve unemployment which constitutes an emergency. The necessity in the public interest for this article is hereby declared as a matter of legislative determination.

Section 24-1-131

Definitions.

The following terms whenever used or referred to in this article, shall have the following respective meanings, unless a different meaning clearly appears from the context:

- (1) HOUSING AUTHORITY. Any housing authority organized pursuant to this title.
- (2) CITY. Any city or incorporated town in the State of Alabama.
- (3) HOUSING PROJECT. Any undertaking to demolish, clear, remove, alter or repair unsafe or unsanitary housing or to provide dwelling or public school accommodations for persons who live in or use unsafe, unsanitary or congested dwelling or public school accommodations. Such term may also include such recreational or social assemblies for educational, health or welfare purposes and such necessary utilities as are designed primarily for the benefit and use of the occupants of such dwelling accommodations.

Section 24-1-132

Powers of municipalities, counties, public bodies, etc., to aid housing authorities.

(a) For the purpose of aiding and cooperating in the planning, undertaking, construction or operation by housing authorities of housing projects located within the area in which it is authorized to act, any city, county, municipal corporation, district or other subdivision or public

body or agency of the state may, upon such terms, with or without consideration, as it may determine:

- (1) Dedicate, release, sell, convey or lease any of its interest in any property or grant easements, licenses or any other rights or privileges therein to a housing authority or the United States of America or any agency thereof;
- (2) Cause parks, playgrounds, recreational, community, educational, water, sewer, drainage facilities or any other works which it is otherwise empowered to undertake to be furnished adjacent to or in connection with housing projects;
- (3) Furnish, dedicate, close, pave, install, grade, regrade, plan or replan streets, roads, roadways, alleys, sidewalks or other places which it is otherwise empowered to undertake;
- (4) Plan or replan, zone or rezone;
- (5) Cause services to be furnished to the housing authority of the character which it is otherwise empowered to furnish;
- (6) Enter into agreements with respect to the exercise by it of its powers relating to the repair, elimination or closing of unsafe, unsanitary or unfit dwellings;
- (7) Do any and all things necessary or convenient to aid and cooperate in its planning, undertaking, construction or operation of such housing projects;
- (8) Incur the entire expense of any public improvements made by it in exercising the powers granted in this article; and
- (9) Enter into agreements, which may extend over any period, notwithstanding any provision or rule of law to the contrary, with a housing authority respecting action to be taken pursuant to any of the powers granted by this article.
- (b) Any law or statute to the contrary notwithstanding, any sale, conveyance, lease or agreement provided for in this section may be made by a city, county, municipal corporation, district or other subdivision or public body or agency of the state without appraisal, public notice, advertisement or public bidding.

Section 24-1-133

Resolution authorizing exercise of powers granted.

The exercise by any city, county, municipal corporation, district or other subdivision or public body or agency of the state of the powers granted in this article may be authorized by resolution of its governing body adopted by a majority of the members of such governing body present at a meeting of such governing body, which resolution may be adopted at the meeting at which such

resolution is introduced. Such a resolution or resolutions shall take effect immediately and need not be laid over or published or posted.

Section 24-1-134

City or town may lend or donate money to housing authority; reimbursement.

Any city or town creating a housing authority shall have the power from time to time to lend or donate money to such authority or to agree to take such action. A housing authority, when it has money available therefor, shall make reimbursements for all such loans made to it.